VILLAGE OF MASSET AGENDA

AGENDA

for

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
October 11, 2022

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 7:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

COUNCIL MEETING

The Village of Masset acknowledges the un-ceded traditional territory of the Haida
Nation on which this meeting is held.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

1.

Minutes of the September 26, 2022 Meeting

BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1.

Heritage Conservation Act Transformation Project

VERBAL REPORTS OF COUNCIL/CAO/CFO

NEW BUSINESS

NB-1

NB-2

NB-3

NB-4

NB-5

NB-6

NB-7

NB-8

Masset Airport Fees Analysis

NCRD Draft Solid Waste Management Plan
University of Victoria Erosion Questionnaire
Roller Rink Washroom

GHD Website Quote

Christmas Decoration Contest

Sidewalk Assessment

Gwaii Trust 2022 Grant Application Deadlines

PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD
ADJOURNMENT

Page 1 of



Village of Masset Regular Council Meeting of September 26, 2022

Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting held September 26, 2022 in the Council
Chambers.

Present: Mayor: B. Pages
Councillors: R. Williams, J. Currie, T. Carty, B. Johnston
CAO: J. Humphries
CFO: J. Brown

CALL TO ORDER

The Village of Masset acknowledges the un-ceded traditional territory of the Haida
Nation on which this meeting is held.

The meeting was called to order at 7:01 pm.
ADOPTION OF AGENDA
Moved by Councillor Johnston, seconded by Councillor Williams to adopt the agenda as
amended with the additions of NB-6 2023 UBCM and NB-7 September 30, 2022 Truth
and Reconciliation Day.
CARRIED
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
Council Meeting Minutes August 15, 2022

Moved by Councillor Carty, seconded by Councillor Johnston that the August 15, 2022
Council meeting minutes be adopted as presented.

CARRIED

MINUTES AND REPORTS OF OTHER ORGANIZATIONS

NCRD Board Highlights August 2022
NCRD Board Highlights September 2022

Moved by Councillor Currie, seconded by Councillor Carty that the NCRD Board reports
be received and filed.

CARRIED

Page 1 of 4



Village of Masset Regular Council Meeting of September 26, 2022

YERBAL REPORTS OF COUNCIL/CAQ/CFO

Mayor Pages, Councillor Carty, Councillor Johnston and CAO Josh Humphries attended
the 2022 UBCM meetings held in Whistler. They met various agencies and Provincial
Ministers and their staff to discuss issues with regards to BC Ferries, health, the airport
solar project and GMDC matters.

Councillor Carty attended Gwaii Trust Society, Island Protocol and Main Street Planning
Committee meetings.

Councillor Johnston attended the Gwaii Trust Society meeting where the Athlii Gwaii
funds were reviewed with a public update session being planned in the near future.

Councillor Williams attended the Vancouver Island Regional Library End of Summer
Reading program as well as a VIRL Board meeting. Councillor Williams also attended
the Main Street Planning Committee and Recreation Committee meetings.

CAO Josh Humphries reported that he and the PW Supervisor went to the float plane
dock to determine what is needed in emergency repairs until more permanent repairs
scheduled for next month could occur. The Transport Canada inspector informed him
that the airport inspection scheduled for the beginning of October has moved the airport
inspection to the end of October 2022. He also informed council that a new Harbour
Manager had been hired and started September 06, 2022.

CFO Jo-Ann Brown reported that she had been working on the 2022 Tax Sale and that
there was no tax sale for 2022 after the final property paid the delinquent taxes on Friday.

Mayor Pages also attended the Island Protocol Table meeting as well as NCRD meetings
which included approving funds for the Civic Address signage rebate program in Area D,
writing a letter of support for the Old Massett Village Council’s Zero Waste Management
Program funding application and approving the draft solid waste management plan which
will be released for public consultation.

Moved by Councillor Carty, seconded by Councillor Williams that the verbal reports be
accepted as presented.

CARRIED

Page 2 of 4



Village of Masset Regular Council Meeting of September 26, 2022

NEW BUSINESS

NB-1 Heritage Conservation Act Transformation Project

Moved by Councillor Carty, seconded by Councillor Johnston that the Heritage
Conservation Act Transformation Project be tabled to a future meeting,

CARRIED
NB-2 Rezoning Application 2463 Harrison Avenue

The request submitted to the Village of Masset to rezone 2463 Harrison Avenue from
RR1 to R2 was reviewed.

Moved by Councillor Carty, seconded by Councillor Currie to start the rezoning
application process for 2463 Harrison Avenue to be rezoned from RR1 to R2.

CARRIED
NB-3 0Old Masset Pumpkin Patch
Moved by Councillor Carty, seconded by Councillor Johnston that the Village of Masset
donate 100 pumpkins as requested by the Youth Coordinator for Old Masset, Toni-Lynn
Davidson.

CARRIED
NB-4 2022 General Election Report to Council

Moved by Councillor Currie, seconded by Councillor Carty that the General Election
Report be received as presented.

CARRIED
NB-5 AP Cheque Listing August 1% -31% 2022

Moved by Councillor Johnston, seconded by Councillor Carty that the AP Cheque
Listing for August 01-31, 2022 be approved as presented.

CARRIED

Page 3 of 4



Village of Masset Regular Council Meeting of September 26, 2022

NB-6 2023 UBCM

Councillor Johnston requested that accommodation arrangements be started for the 2023
UBCM being held in Vancouver so council can stay in the same hotel or area that the
convention will be held at.

NB-7 September 30, 2022 Truth and Reconciliation Day

Councillor Carty ensured that staff would be able to take part in the Truth and
Reconciliation Day activities. It was stated that September 30, 2022 is now a national
holiday and the office would be closed.

ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Councillor Carty the meeting be adjourned at 7:54pm to a closed session.

CARRIED

Recording Secretary Mayor

Certified Correct, Administrator

Page 4 of 4



7/ A

aﬁs BRITISH
COLUMBIA

FIRST
NATIONS RS
SUMMIT oA Cretr

August 23, 2022
Dear Village of Masset:

RE: Invitation to participate in the Heritage Conservation Act Transformation Project
— Stakeholder Engagement Sessions (Fall 2022)

As co-chairs of the Joint Working Group on First Nations Heritage Conservation
(JWGFNHC), we are writing to inform you of upcoming opportunities for stakeholders to
engage on the Heritage Conservation Act (HCA) and its administration as part of the HCA
Transformation Project (HCATP).

Background

The HCA encourages and facilitates the protection and conservation of B.C.’s unique cultural
heritage. The Provincial Heritage Register lists nearly 60,000 protected heritage sites, of
which over 90% are of First Nations origin. Over many years, First Nations and stakeholders
have shared issues, concerns, and recommendations for improving the HCA and its
administration. While the Act underwent administrative amendments in 2019, no significant
changes have been made since 1996.

The Province is committed to advancing its reconciliation mandate and upholding its
obligations set out in the Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples Act (Declaration
Act) on aligning laws with the United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous
Peoples (UN Declaration) and commitment 4.35 of the Declaration Act Action Plan,

The JWGFNHC was created in 2007 through resolutions of the BC Assembly of First
Nations, First Nations Summit, and Union of BC Indian Chiefs. its membership includes
representatives appointed by the First Nations Leadership Council (FNLC) and the Province.
The JWGFNHC is collaboratively designing and leading the HCATP process.

The JWGFNHC recognizes the need to transform the HCA to better meet the needs of all
British Columbians. The HCATP will strive to increase certainty and stability for First
Nations, landowners, proponents, developers, and government, while supporting sound
heritage management and decision-making.

HCATP Phase 1 Stakeholder Engagement Sessions

Phase | of the HCATP involves engagement with First Nations and stakeholders (through
various in-person, virtual, and written/survey mechanisms) on the HCA and its administration
and the HCATP engagement approach. It also involves engagement with First Nations
regarding legislative alignment with the UN Declaration.



Phase | stakeholder engagement sessions will provide an opportunity to confirm previously
received feedback related to the HCA, and to discuss additiona! challenges and potential
solutions. Please find attached a Backgrounder document developed by the JWGEFNEHC to
provide additional context and information about the HCATP and key discussion questions
for your consideration.

Previous input provided by First Nations and stakeholders has been grouped within the
following five key themes: these themes and their content will form the basis for discussion
during the engagement sessions. This feedback is summarized in Appendix A: Phase 1 HCA
Transformation Project Framework of the Backgrounder.

Indigenous Values and Rights Recognition (engagement with First Nations only)
Decision-Making

Protections

Resourcing to Support Heritage Management

Compliance and Enforcement

e

We encourage your participation on this important initiative as your insights and perspectives
will help guide the HCATP. Both in-person and virtual engagement sessions are available as
outlined in Table 1 below.

To register for a session, please respond via email (EnzageHCA@ gov.be.ca) with the
participant’s names, organization or affiliation, and session(s) you are planning to attend by
September 6™, 2022. An online survey will be available following the first engagement
session while written submissions will be accepted until October 15, 2022, and can be
submitted to the above email address.

We appreciate you taking the time to engage on the HCATP and look forward to meeting with
you. If you have questions or comments regarding the HCATP, please email
EngageHCA @ gov.be.ca,

Sincerely,

t e
Judith Sayers, IWGFNHC Co-Chair Matt Austin, JWGFNHC Co-Chair
President Assistant Deputy Minister
Nuu-chah-nulth Tribal Council Integrated Resource Operations Division

Ministry of Forests



‘sdnaad aat10 oy jo Aue Japun

112} 1ou saop uotieziuniio/ssauisng Jnok
J1 20 *puane 01 SuoAur Jof suoissas uadQ
:uepuany uadQ

uonesnsidal
uodn swuedioiund o) uas aq (M YUl

wdgp: — wdgo: |
09 4990190

UOISS3g [BNUIA

S1PISIC]
Jeuolday] pue syuawudAon) jediatuniy
JUIWUIIACD [0

uonensidal
uodn syuedionaed o) uas aq [[Im juIf v

wd 0:g1 -weoi6
w9 4390150

UOISSag jenlIA

"$121I81(
jeuoiday] puv suawaAon jedisuniy
UM WIIA0T) [BIO0T]

uones1§a
uodn sjuedioiued o3 Juas aq [[Im jul| v

wdoo:T| — Wepo:6
8T 12quimdag

UOISSAS [BNMIA

“SI1IS1(]
jruoifiay pue sjuawwiaaon) [edisiuny
JUAUIUIDAOL) [RIO]

uonensIdal
vodn sjuedioiued o) Juas aq (jim jul| v

wdQ:Z1 — wWepR:6
9T Joquimdag

UOISSaS [ENMIA

‘sdnoad aagio a1 jo Aue 1apun ||vj 10U

$20p uonZIURTI0/SSAUISNg JNoA J1 .10 ‘puape

01 auosue J0) suossas uossad-ur uadp
duepuapy uadg

£AS G9A DE 12AN0JUTA
1920§ sSuNseR 159M SIS
21U (8335 0171-00F1 SWooy
anua)) noquey

Ansiaatup) 1asel,] uowis

wdgQ:T1 —weeo:6
pr| 1aqundag

)¢l “I2ANCIUBA

UOISSAS UOSIa|-U]

dnoary sapjoyayms

anuap

aun L, % amq

uonBI0]

TT0T (1B SUOISSag JIpjoyaywi§ — [ AqEL




HERITAGE CONSERVATION ACT TRANSFORMATION PROJECT:
BACKGROUNDER FOR
PHASE 1 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

August 23, 2022

Transformative Connections: Granddaughter of Today's Name Carrier T'xweldtse
with Transformed Ancestor of the Ts'elxwéyeqw Tribe - Stone T'xweldtse. (Photo: David Campion, 2005)



Table of Contents

8 o O O O O e L E O D O O B D D DO O OO T T OO X 2
L G () T e e S e 4
HERITAGE CONSERVATION ACT TRANSFORMATION PROJECT PROCESS ...ccovvverrersrrcsnnerasasoasoses 6
TRANSFORMING THE HCA: PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE OF CULTURE AND HERITAGE IN

THE PROVINCE.........ccorvoisvsnrnrennionsossonssossosssosersesssssrssnasansassssssrasisassssassssasnsesins iessssssssssnsanseansanns 7

Discussion Questions

HCATP Backgrounder -Stakeholder Engagement 1 August 23, 2022



INTRODUCTION

The Declaration on the Rights of indigenous Peoples Act
{Declaratian Act) requires that the Province in “consultation
and cooperation with Indigenous peoples” take “all measures
necessary” ! to ensure consistency between the United
Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples (UN
Declaration) and the laws of British Columbia.

The regulation of cultural heritage resources in BC through the
Heritage Conservation Act (HCA) has been identified as one
immediate priority for change to achieve consistency between
provincial laws and the UN Declaration. The Declaration Act
Action Plan commits the Province to “Work with First Nations
to reform the HCA to align with the UN Declaration, including
shared decision-making and the protection of First Nations
cultural, spiritual, and heritage sites and objects.”

The Heritage Conservation Act Transformation Project (HCATP}
has therefore been launched to reform the HCA to ensure
consistency with the UN Declaration and to better meet the
needs of all British Columbians.

The purpose of this Backgrounder is to support the process of
stakeholder engagement as part of the HCATP. This
Backgrounder has been developed in cellaboration with the
Joint Working Group on First Nations Heritage Conservation
{JWGFNHC). The JWGFNHC was formed in 2007 through
resolutions of the BC Assembly of First Nations, First Nations
Summit, and Union of BC Indian Chiefs, and includes members
appointed by the First Nations Leadership Council (FNLC) and
the Province. The mandate of the JWGFNHC is to “explore
options and provide recommendations to improve the
protection, management and conservation of First Nations
cultural and heritage sites.”

This Backgrounder is in three parts:
1. How we got here: The connection of First Nations to

their cultural heritage resources; the impacts of
colonialism on First Nations' relationships with these

Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous
Peoples Act

The Declaration Act establishes the UN
Declaration as the Province's framawork for
reconciliation. It aims to create a path
forward that respects the human rights of
Indigenous Peoples while introducing better
transparency and predictability in the work
that First Nations and the Province do
together.

There are four key areas of the legislation:

1) Section 3 requires the Province to take all
measuras necessary to achieve consistency
betwaeen its laws and the UN Declaration,

2) Section 4 requires the Province to develop
and implement an action plan, in consuitation
and cooperation with Indigenous Peoples, to
meet the objectives of the UN Declaration,

3) Section 5 requires regular reporting to the
provincial legislature to monitor progress on
the alignment of laws and imptemeantation of
the action plan, including tabling annual
reports by June 3Cth of each year, and

4) Sections 6 and 7 enable forms of
agreements with Indigenous governing
bodies, including to implement free, prior,
and informed consent.

Heritage Conservation Act

The HCA encourages and facilitates the
protection and conservation of heritage
within BC. The HCA provides tools and
mechanisms to establish and maintain the
haritage register for the currently known
heritage sites (approx. 60,000) as well as
authorizing inspections and alterations of
heritage sites. Tha HCA also contains
provisions that authorize various compliance
and enforcement actions that may be taken
against persons who damage or alter sites or
objects without authorization.

The Act provides the authority for the
Minister, under prescribed conditions, to
enter into agreements with First Nations {i.e.,
s.4 and 5. 20).

resources; and the calls for change that First Nations and stakeholders have long advanced,

leading to the HCATP.

2. Proposed HCATP process: How engagement will occur in the HCATP to achieve consistency
between the HCA and the UN Declaration while improving the HCA for all 8ritish Columbians.

! https://www.bclaws.gov.be.ca/civin/document/id/complete/statreg/19044

HCATP Backgrounder —Stakeholder Engagement 2

August 23, 2022




3. Transforming the HCA: Previously received feedback on the HCA from First Nations and
stakeholders has been summarized into five themed priority areas for change; these wilt form the
basis of Phase 1 engagement on the HCATP:

1. Indigenous Values and Rights Recognition

Decision-Making

Protections

Resourcing to Support Heritage Conservation

Compliance and Enforcement

VB W

HCATP Backgrounder -Stakeholder Engagement 3 August 23, 2022



HOW WE GOT HERE

For countless generations, First Nations have governed and stewarded their cultural heritage resources.
From the remains of those who have passed, to the expressions and manifestations of their ways of life,
First Nations have maintained the inextricable connection to their past, and do so to support the
countless generations to come.

Part of the legacy of colonialism in B.C. has been the institution of laws, policies, and practices that did
not properly recognize, respect, or protect First Nations’ cultural heritage resources. Additionally, the
role of First Nations’ governments and laws in the protection and management of First Nations’ cultural
heritage resources has been extremely limited.

Over time, and for many reasons, cultural heritage resources, including ancestral remains, have been
disturbed or destroyed. First Nations have advocated for change — protecting their heritage on the
ground, revitalizing their laws and policies, strengthening relationships and protocols with the Province,
and calling for transformation of B.C.'s heritage conservation laws and policies.

Many stakeholders who interact with the HCA (industry, landowners, developers, archaeologists, etc.)
have also raised concerns with the current heritage management framework and requested its
modernization. Many stakeholders continue to experience variable and often long timeframes for
permitting decisions and application related responses; additionally, stakeholders and First Nations
continue to seek process and timeline certainty.

The Province has legislated the oversight and protection of certain archaeological sites since 1925,
though protections at that time were limited. It was not until 1977 with the passage of the HCA that
protection was extended to certain archaealogical sites on Crown and private land, regardless of whether
sites were known or as-yet unrecorded. Significant amendments to the HCA were introduced in 1994 and
1996. These amendments expanded what was subject to automatic protection under the HCA and
provided greater administrative flexibility and tools to support site protections. These amendments also
included provisions to ensure impacts to sites only occurred under the authority of an HCA permit to
ensure sufficient site recording, assessment and mitigation methods, and for the results and
recommendations of work to be summarised in a report subject to provincial oversight and approval. The
HCA has not been substantially changed since 1996. Recent amendments in 2019 were administrative in
nature and served primarily to add new compliance and enforcement tools and were not subject to
comprehensive engagement with First Nations or stakeholders.

While there have been several initiatives undertaken over the years to improve and/or identify
prospective improvements to the heritage conservation framework in B.C., there continue to be
challenges with the HCA and its administration.

In addition to ongoing interactions with First Nations and stakeholders, a number of key public-facing
policy and engagement initiatives or papers have helped to inform this work:
» First Nations Heritage Conservation Action Plan (First Nations Leadership Council 2012)
o The 2016 BC Archaeological Survey (Hammond 2016)
» Key Findings of the Indigenous Perspectives on Repatriation Symposium (Royal BC Museum
2017)

HCATP Backgrounder —Stakeholder Engagement 4 August 23, 2022



e Research from Around the Globe Regarding Mechanisms for Protecting Sacred Sites, Areas and
Landscape and Burial Sites of Indigenous Nations (JWGFNHC 2018)

* Ancestral Remains Policy Review — Summary of Engagement Feedback {Archaeclogy Branch

2019)
» Recognizing and Including Indigenous Cultural Heritage in 8.C. {First Peoples’ Cultural Council
2019)

+ Recommendations for Decolonizing British Columbia’s Heritage-Related Processes and
Legislation {First Peoples’ Cultural Council 2020}

+ A Selected Review of Federal and Provincial Legislation Implicating Indigenous Heritage in British
Columbia (First Peoples’ Cultural Council 2022)

These and other numerous policy, engagement, research, and continuous improvement initiatives, along
with the significant breadth of input received to date from First Nations and stakeholders, form the basis
of the HCATP. The JWGFNHC has summarized this input into these five priority areas for change:

Indigenous Values and Rights Recognition
Decision-Making

Protections

Resourcing to Support Heritage Conservation
Compliance and Enforcement

tng B juog by =

The JWGFNHC recognizes the need to transform the HCA to better meet the needs of all British
Columbians. Transforming the HCA will provide for alignment with the UN Declaration, as obligated
under the Declaration Act, and will support the provincial mandate of lasting and meaningful
reconciliation with First Nations Title and Rights holders. Doing so will also help address current
challenges with the HCA and its administration, including but not limited to, increasing process certainty
through legislative and programmatic reform.

HCATP Backgrounder —Stakeholder Engagement 5 August 23, 2022



HERITAGE CONSERVATION ACT TRANSFORMATION PROJECT PROCESS

Stakeholder engagement is a key part of the HCATP process. The HCATP is proposed to take place over
three phases. Phase 1 of the HCATP will include virtual and in-person engagement with First Nations
Rights holders and stakeholders, while subsequent Phases will include further opportunities for
stakeholders and private citizens to provide feedback.

Key stakeholders for Phase 1 of the HCATP were identified through an analysis of HCA permit
applications from 2019-2021 and information provided by the Archaeology and Heritage Branches. This
grouping includes industry (land and resource development), interest groups, academics, local/regional
governments, and archaeological and heritage professionals.

" Phase2 J Phase 3
[Engagementon o
Dptioss Legislative Drafting Legislative
f S ¥ and Consultation Introduction
(S develon 4 Target 2024
‘Request For 4
Legislation

&
4

h
[ Advancement to Phases 2 and 3 requires Cabinet, Modern Treaty Nation, and First Naticns approvals _J

1. Phase 1- Engagement on the HCATP Process and Priorities for Change (Spring-Fall 2022): Phase 1
will serve to identify and confirm priority areas for change to align the HCA with the UN Declaration
and to generate potential solutions to improve the HCA and its administration to better meet the
needs of all British Columbians.

2. Phase 2~ Policy Development (Spring 2023): Phase 2 is anticipated to focus on developing options
and solutions for priority areas for change. This phase will involve substantive work in consultation
and cooperation with First Nations to consider how the standards of the UN Declaration may be
reflected in changed laws, policies, and practices, as well as engagement with stakeholders to ensure
that their concerns and priorities are addressed.

3. Phase 3 ~ Development of Lows and Associated Practices (by Spring 2024): Phase 3 is anticipated to
focus on developing proposed changes to legislation, policy, and programs.

HCATP Backgrounder —Stakeholder Engagement & August 23, 2022



It is anticipated that multiple means will be utilized to engage with stakeholders throughout the HCATP
process. These may include:

o Virtual and in-person engagement sessions
Meetings with key stakeholders

Online surveys

Technical working groups

Thematic workshops

o  Website portals with information and updates
e \Written correspondence

Details of how and when these engagement opportunities will occur will be shared and updated
throughout the HCATP process.

TRANSFORMING THE HCA: PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE OF CULTURE AND
HERITAGE IN THE PROVINCE '

Priorities for Change Identified by First Nations and Stakeholders

Over many years, First Nations and stakeholders have identified concerns with the HCA and priorities for
change. The JWGFNHC has summarized previously received input from First Nations and stakeholders
into five priority areas for change described below. A comprehensive list of feedback and proposed
solutions or options received from First Nations and stakeholders is provided in Appendix A and will form
the basis of Phase 1 engagement.

Indigenous Values and Rights Recognition
Decision-Making

Protections

Resourcing to Support Heritage Management
Compliance and Enforcement

L1 cds tughog

Discussion Questions
In considering these challenges, please consider the following discussion questions:

¢ Do these five themes cover the core priorities for change? Why or why not? What is missing?

s What additional issues and challenges are you facing, or observing, in heritage conservation?

» What specific changes would you like to see to the HCA and its administration {regulations,
policies, programs)? What systems, tools or resources are needed to address these issues and
challenges?

In considering the engagement process described above, please consider the following discussion
questions:

s Does the proposed engagement process provide an effective approach to support the

transformation of the HCA?
= What other engagement opportunities and tools should be considered?

HCATP Backgrounder —Stakeholder Engagement 7 August 23, 2022



¢  Who else should be engaged in the HCATP process?

NEXT STEPS

Phase 1 of the HCATP engagement process will continue through Fall 2022. A report summarizing the
feedback received during Phase 1 engagement will be produced and used to support HCATP
advancement. A separate report will be prepared summarizing feedback provided by First Nations.

It is anticipated that the feedback provided through the current engagement phase will inform discussion
on policy options that will be developed and refined in subsequent Phases of the HCATP.

HCATP Backgrounder ~Stakeholder Engagement 8 August 23, 2022



APPENDIX A: HCATP FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT

This table presents a summary of issues regarding the HCA that have been expressed by First Nations and
stakeholders over many years. It draws on comments heard by the Archaeology Branch in its
relationships and engagement with First Nations and stakeholders. It also incorporates some themes
drawn from relevant policy documents (listed above in the section How We Got Here}. ln many cases,
issues were raised by both First Nations and other stakeholder groups (e.g., industry, landowners,
developers, archaeologists) and this input has been combined in the following table.

With assistance from the IWGFNHC, preliminary analysis of feedback received to date has been used to
identify patterns that led to the emergence of five key themes:

Indigenous Values and Rights Recognition
Decision-Making

Protections

Resourcing to Support Heritage Management
Compliance and Enforcement

Ly gl o=

The first part of the table summarizes key issues, while the second summarizes previously recommended
options and potential solutions. The final section of the table cites relevant sections under each theme to
assist with the identification of areas within the HCA that may require modernization and/or alignment
with the UN Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples per Section 3 of the Declaration Act. The
limitations and strengths of this table are intertwined; it has been prepared by archaeological
professionals that work directly with First Nations and stakeholders on these matters on a regular basis
and therefore is an informed, but not independent and structured analysis. The content combines rights-
holders and stakeholder feedback to identify key shared interests but does not specifically identify what
comments were received from First Nations. This table is intended to provide a summary and backdrop
for Phase 1 discussion that will result in three reports: one What We Heard report summarizing input
received from First Nations; another What We Heard report summarizing stakeholder input; and a single
Executive Summary document that summarizes both sets of findings.

HCATP Backgrounder -Stakeholder Engagement 9 August 23, 2022



TZOL "€ Isndny

JuawaleBul sopioyaneis- Japunniiyieg 41YOH

{2310 wawsassy

{Fawyanauy ‘saupy § Alsaug ‘weidoiy
ucnenral aluey 7§ 1§10 ‘UDISFHLILICT)
100 % J0 Amanaselu) g Jadsued]
youery afeynay "Y2ue g Adojoaeydiy)
£apoq AtojeinBal pue voyesaa) (e Ao
waaypp oW sluatsainbas uonesgdde
puw adeiHay (RIN}ND JO JUMHINOjUE

PUE BOIIRLSIULAR WIS SLONY
pauaadUL o pamno Apeas

shemie 10U e 5)5[F0j0aryE [eun|ssAposd
Aq apew suojiep 1uawaleuepy
YOH Yim are)dliod arcidw) 0l uonexnpa
PUR sSauaieme J)qnd FIUPYUR O3 paay
YoH

Y 01 ajqeunoe waip Jupioy pur Jqnd
ayy pue sjusundosd Aupesnpa up [Angnpuy
‘siojjwat ‘Siusuiiieaad je30) SUCReN

15814 "a3upansg " 8°a) dsay

pa1epdn 3q O} Paau sURHNg pur $3121od

Je do yaumig AJojoarlly awog
saporsadas 10) aurpind JE3)3 Jo yoE}
ajenbapeu}

aie Peipsy jrnynd uo ellueya ayew))s Jo
cyaedun Y1 SSIPPE O STNOSAI PUR A0
satioysodad

jo Hew pue dopaaap 10
uoddns Jupniau *332IUsY |1IAYNI B3y
SEYS PUR 32){€1A3) ‘prendajes 01 51001

pue swesSoud ‘{"na Jupun) seuEIsns)
Funinosal Jayung 31nbas suopep 180§
(epnga)

pue sj0303ad [RINYN3 JO 51503 Y Jeag
ARLU SLOYIIHN 5L UaLKICPARR JD BsNEIEG
PRGIMT|P 319 SUIMLA) [IISIIUT UM
uonniised poddns oy

10 '5139iq0 afwyray b suU|RWE) |RNS3IUE jO
uoyeedal pur sjocajoud jrinynd yoddns

PUR $2|0J AZjEWIa) pUE AJ|i€]d 01 paay
WaUidoaAaR AR

10 pasodox Lim 13uoa U pue Juasid
aq 0] Ajayy wasand aie saunota adepay
# UNLIAl3P o) YRIGPP 1 Jupew [ssadie
paisai} ayqeyeae Ajpygnd 10U 2Je s|apow
asRpad [endojoaeyie pue Alojuaay] 3ug
supne ppa Bunanpues Juipnpu yBisianc
Aoje|nia so) Aiedes alueyua o) parpy
g u| sasidojoaee

10§ $PIepuIEls [euitss)asd snoKB

pue JPa)d Welew pUR YiGeITA O} PRAN
SUDHUAABTILOI YIH

padaje oy u QALY
1IRIIP AICW ANTIP SUOJIEN IS4
SUCTIUAARIILAD BALICH )

o] suonedpsaay oddns or Juputiotay
WAWaAoua pue axuendwos 3jenbapey)
WIH A4 U 5|00

IUUDNOI pue aJuefdwod sipnbapey)

1u3waliojug pue asueydwo)

©1 *51800 [e3{BO)0aRYIIN USSLHOIIN 13510

o1 5215 aJeluay Jursyulis M Aadord

Jo aseyund poddns o) wiiueydaw

10 "Bujpun) “yiomawny Jeap oN

uop3ajond

ujsdedl o3 Buipea) “siep jo 1no pue

aejdwazl) 5 saus aFuiiay jo Aamoaw

wawadeysy

aBeyiay Joy 5001 pus swaishs pajesda

«UOU PUR “RUTSURRING "Pa1enbiuy

QHOIHA

ul pRIRIUEN0T 3R Jyeas youesg Fupisiz

pue 'swioj 3ys pue sjwsad Yo O Jaquinu

jues ulis syl ssauppe 03 Menbapeu

ase §3nosa) YIuesg Aojparyuy

afejjiay [riny| N> eduy Arw Jey) sjedlage

13ioud pue suopexdde jiwiad (@ jo

| Fuipniu) L adnuay

woddns ADaiaye 03 seuNGsa) lenbape

AR 10U DP JULWIFADT PUR SUDHIEN 155])
Juswaieuewy

ofripay uoddns o3 Jupdinosay

advipay jo WIWaReurL ay) Uy
204 s Juawuiaa0d [eoo) poddns a) s3unosa)
PUB SO0} |RUGHPPE 10f P33U ¥ 5) My

29w jeadide 10 Uopniesel Mnds|p oN

e 1y
{8307 "33V UONIDLIODSURI] "1y SN

3¢ PUDT I3V HAWSSITEY [ULIeHALT
LY SHUNLIY 50D T G PV saN1Ld
aBupy ' J5arod Buipnpug ‘uonersilag
uasagp 1epun Jupesade sluaunascl
(€201 PUR SIISIUIL SSOUIR SBEIIRY

L] 3 " pany oN
saus adejuay jmaunoud Jo wopuloaa

pur uoneulisap 40) BB 10 Adjod Jo 351
auesyuls aut J0

£I0ITW) I
aqnd ;a0 J3pIsUna Ajssaidea you op
PUE JRapAh U8 BRI BuyRw-unis3aD YOH

saned

11 10) ARTATU O) X3y pue ping
Aaaensiunupe 1 ssasasd Jurmassd YoH
SHN Sso0%

£3652205d UOYIELINSUCD PAIUIGISIP "S3NSIURL

spicoas e Iooseysie Ul pajuasaida)
Aajenbapeut 31w sawry aveyd snovadipu|
tsaxe

D1 SUONEN 15J)J IO} AP BG UE 1Y)
sapoysodan up PRy sie s9{qe alniiey
*f13af{qo aleipay Jo uonEIedal SSURPY
10U 330P puR diYRI3UMD LD Jusft §1 YOH
{suojire||o3 wnasnw "pus Mwaud T3}
painnsal aq Avw s33afq0 pue saus sljay
Juwatiuls AjuIning O) FTRII8 SUONEN 3514
Auadoud [Enisagau 20

o108 saunesas s¥eipay jo |
Whasy | *s|apows Asaaliap | .t.

anjea ol | P U pateq uoj 1
10 3BAR| JURIAIP FpiACIE JOU 330P YOH
saus aleiay

01 $33utuiy SAIRINLUNG $TIPPE 10U SRR YOH
uo9104d u) sdefl 0y Bu|pea) ‘syep jo Ino

i ta0E5) ‘SUCEPARSS[RI M
Wo UenIRUIpICaI (SYN) 10135
aaincsay ey jeputaaid ajenbapryj

Aiouasay Jjays ul $Iom
paiiwad yOH 10 Alea 01 paaosdds ase

padjjen

pur 213jduiacu| 5| 53113 #Tej)iay jo A

patngq
-asejd 30u §| Jny) alREAY (RNND 3qiBumY
puR 33u3p| Ayd inoyum says

sy {B2|TO{0IPUE YIRYm Uil AP
O) JURM SUDIEYN 15014 JadURga) |FUCHT0L
Supunosa) asuau| annbal put ‘Alpoyqine

Jujpnpuy ‘afeysay (wnyhd yailueivy anud
pue anulosdl Ajalenbape 10U S0P YOH
SHILNLUWIOD J3YID 40 SUSIEN 35)|J 01 anjer
alejpay Juzayulis aamy Jey) saYs 9y ET-150d
Paoud AJeHIHUOINE 10U $30P YOH
sapiMaued peraisiial se 11adsa) pue
UONI0H] LIRS BYT 9A|@032 J0U Op sadE|d
{FLNG PUE SUIRLS T |RIISAIUR SUOHLEN 35214
jjuoa

FheaID UE3 YIIYM "suopiaye usad osE

NG sENjEA pur S13[q0 ‘a3 ey 1310
£3 s@Al#t J0L[E 3NNEIS Brodind-{Enp € 5] YOH
{uonusasap ‘s)ien sleway ‘sauepunog

2115 ‘spoad anesll ‘sujewal jensadue "2
Jeung “3-2) wawalojua pur ‘uojIa0sd
LY IIISIUILIPT $)LM FONST] PUR UOISN U0
SAENED YOIH Ul SUO[HULDP JeaT JO YI§]

s31ys aBeipay ynm Pajuod

doad d i £ S1PUYM 53 Tre
$521ppe 03 1enbapeul sk sacsadoud
SATIRHSIURLPE puR 51001 |E83] WAL

SUDJIA0IY

yew-uoispap Jujp JE3[UN 3w “spuE|
awand oy Ajdde o1 FuBuayey ase "aeodau
o1 Buo| 00} 8y TuAWSAIIe b S YOH

13V UOMIEUDIIA(] BYL JAPUT SIUMLIS e

£ 1 YU Apuanns 10U S30P YIMH

SPIRPUES SUSHIRR 1201 JQ [RRUIADLY

WBHIND 133 Jou Aml pur 3auaasd

11Ny BLL 3403 10U OP $TapO SANNPALD
{exTojoaiyie pUT {SYOY) SIURUTSaSTY
mapang [eBooaryary [ruordes Bunsicg
pasnbai s sassacasd Bujuueld

asn pueq pue TupInU-Uo|E3p W ded
MIIAI ap jo adns 2y
WEe Y] IE ST VNI O UDHRIAPIUD)
papaau

1] JUILIBA|CAU| 133)|P PUR SaA[Ia0TIad
alpapmeuy sNoualipu) 4o 3ASR{I)

FI0W S| IR |IPoRas Jup Ell-UCSIdAP
ey

{RINKNI 23T J0 VOHINAISTUSD PUR ‘WORIa10d
Quawafeumw Y] U) KOs paruiyus

e Joj JUHITI USIG FARY SUCHLEN 131]4

"

Supe-uotsdag

1 dza (mamyjna ‘adpa| Y (RUGHIpRIL
*afeypay [eInyna 12yl dojaaap pue 1dajard
‘JonjU0D ‘upnuiRw oy $3doay snoualipu|
10 51D 343 STPIMOLYTE Jou £30P YOH
$nEISPUR] [RINYILS UIYIM
$33%)d PALIIULOIIRLU) $H JOU PUR SUOR 0|
2330351 £0 says alnpY sauyap YIH
yom |enScioanyun U uopedpaaed
30) saplunlieddo papiaoid 2q SUONEN
1014 1ey3 annbas jou op Sisiad YO
saawd
|¥nng Jo suretal asacue Fuideuew sof
sjoraicid [BINYND mnjjoj o) Ruauadard pue
ssapoy 1wiad sanbas jou op sifuusd yOH
saofod pue tme sleiliey suoiEN
38414 Neadaiug Jo a1uTosa) 10U s30P YOH
[34g4) WIsuco pawsopu) pur Joud “saly jo
1deauaa gIYNN P43 SI3IPRE 10U SI0P YIH
s|euajal puw
S YD 13A0 3HU0D puw Ayt
410G ITRAIIU| Al PUE TI5I1U) SUOEN
38414 1w uopeuawaul JIHAMN 2
291 Ay pue EuonaAaN YOH Y SUDREWN
saxpud o
afny1ay jmunyna Rulall ‘SNONUHIUOD JOU St
grET-)s0d 133)04d AEIELIOINE 10U S30p
1 R3O 4N 89w ey $133G0 pue
sayis alniuay saasd Afjeaprwaine YoM
aFmpay junyna
Jj} JO UBIRASRSURD U ‘uoipanad
“uawaleuru Ayl Ul H0» PAURYR
033q AR SUOHEN I
uo{}|udniay
sjudjy pue samjeA snouadipy|

sanssi




I

7TOZ ‘€T wndny

awakedu] Japjoyayeis— JapunciByieg d1¥IH

uoie(siBa) pue Satpog

>=:-__._-u. uaiue sjuawainbas pue
TpIepUEls deuew almuay

10 @IyEILSI 0} SINUNLIOGdD xuum

[wawdeyanap o) pasodoid

PR [euAod Yy u) yiom jexdooarye

annba) o3 AYjioyine (@33 ‘ucpeanpa

sauljapin® pue sapyed jeuopesado

YJauerg ABojcaeyay do[aAap pue #51A9Y
110} pind Jwa)2 dojaaag

uuu—...!. wo afueyl a1wwip jo spaRdud)

Y1 ST2IPPR OF 532IN0%3) IINIAs Pur ANUap)
sutpwal

{BIISATUE JO UC{EIO|DI JO JUSULIRIUIRS

10j Yoddny pruttiaiad o!.ﬁ..n 2 «E-

sapljediumua

0] taMNOTA pUR 5j00) Jupued
almpay jo wawdopEaap syl Loddng
passalppe

uopn|osa1 Andap
pur sjeaddu 1pj sassadnid Jeep dojassq
{51001 pue ‘axuepnd Tujuresl
‘apedes pateau) - 3-3) Ayrajdwo put
‘suawannbal ‘FUojEadrd UG RNV
pajuryua poddns 0} $auN0sas dojAg
{$wt13431 Jo Buypuny
PUG UORELRIO0D SHN freandd
Huiiad jo mIjaa) SUDIEN 1] pUR LoURIG
Allopoaatyany Waynaued ' ¥ a) saupawn
puw d uontex dde suprans o
{.pueyjo
@t 11aq puR 1AYRL, ‘S13)18 FAENLND
*SUOEMjdit) HIICUOID pUE [TRGE
"8'8) 510338} 1521210 J3pRQUF IpApPY|
0} Buprws-uoisidap o) rpaY Aepdn
SRIDARI
ays pue ‘suodal ‘sRUa Bupjuuad Jo)

ase a¥nuay o) sPediy
) INSHA B Sws|UEIAW dojaang
saus

almpay (rpwiacsd Jo uoyuloass pur

AS paInIalL) pUR 31003 IHUIBPOW O
AU} PUT SOPSUONEIR) BOURHUR

Ol UCREMIPIS0 SHN pue Aaatap wesload
yaumg Afojoaeyue rucila sas|og O

uoneuBisap 1Y) 10} RIS Jeap dojaAag id upy {5139p pue [143)31 {SUN)
satpeq Aloieinda) udIap J012as #2nateY [esey 01 salusyd aeprtue)

Aq pafeusw uojieisido) Juasayp JFpun nq IT pasapy: oq Aew dooy
Fw1say Jo voy id gy a0 Iy M 1eaU EB3s Bouenpulis-yiy u..__vc.._n::n

Jqnd “Fap it ays paiuoy 101

sjuallaiap jeUorppe dojpASR pue Ajtvag)
SUSIIPPUALILINIDS

jruoissayosd o] #aype o) AGRILNOIT
Slaumapue| pus slusuodasd ploy

g Ul oM |330|0a0Y IR 10] SPIBRURLS
pur ‘saugapin® 'sapijod ajepdn pue dojaseg
{sywsad woH

SSPUT HOM 13PG0D 40 POy o1 Aig 3y
pUE ‘SUPRE P8 MBIASS FIGRIBANED
“SUBHEHeNB) YIH 8yl Japun yiom
Juponpuad sjeuossajoid [eadojoaeyzie

$0 W Hsiaan Aoyeindag aaveyuy

tatsadasd pue ‘sjeol (#3a) ‘Aypeded
WAWAOJUR PUE FIUEACT FIUBYUF

WOH 34l Ypm aauedwiod fue jo ssausieme
F3E212U| 0] UCNEINES puE Juiue); S2utyul
{taguoyine Jurye

-ua{fRep pAIEl3p ILo]/pareys "asneiiu)
dispiemals JRIUALLOIAUS ‘SURIPIENT
At umar s Aq pray sMupqisucdsor
WIWaNoUa pue ‘uoliedisaan

‘uenatosd 33|40 Fup0)luoWw

U] JUBLLDAOAU] SUDHEN 13414 3SR2I0U)

PUFLLID 2SO ] prun ﬂ“__.hn.__urp._r...._

T Uy,
*saspyaind puw; podiing ) sIUN0s
Fujpuny pue Yot a|qissod Japsuo]
uojieULIO| B1Ep
‘o3 dn sapiaoid Asojusau| AUy Jey) aInsua
B9 $fHa3e) 1S Jo Jopyaeq ) ssa1ppy
wawsisusw
adeiray aanaaga pue WAL 'paIIIAN|
LodUns 0l 5007 pur sWaisAs Joueyuy
seanosa)
elnyuey pur YO JO STAUSIEME BERALL)
o [par-snovaBpy Ajjrpuaiod) SunuesBod

{siirts pue “aBpapmouy 'sanwd

RIS ‘SUBhIpRA (R0 “39) paseg-aaed
10U 51 3E afeylay |INLND 8)qiRuey)
SU(PN|OU) *SHHUNLIWCT JDYIA JC SUOREN
38114 o) anjen adeiuay unuBis jo aje
WL @JUIPAS (RNTAY INOYIM S011S pue
$21|1 9p81-150d )0 usiiIsosd Byl BxuRyUa
pue puedis o} SWSUEYIIW dojPAa(
{51003 uonRuBsIp Joyio "Iy

SINAIIT [DIIUNF PUD JURLIRIU] VORI
S41 19pun SARIAWaD paaysiial yim

pue speuaimw uoEaNRa Nqnd dojarag
YIURSg JuSiEAo]

pur 32ue)dwor’) pue Lurg Alcjoamyuy
211 Wiyum saznosas Supuryua Japjsuo]
Beypiay )ay) 10 O FPIEMIIE Y] L) SUCHIEN
1514 Loddns o3 syuesd pue swreafosd

10} Buipun) Wwial-Fuo) ‘ajqewmsns dojaaag
s|rusajai pajord

pue sucemdde Jjwied jo mataas Buipniau)
“wawaTruew a¥euay U)

bt B)|e Jag *3'8) sa0wd |#unq pue
SUjRWa [E41522UR JO) SUONIIIL anIeyul
suopaayasd ays axueyus o (3@ oy
PUBT) SWISIURLYIAW JBNa PuR ZE S "TLT S
‘58 'p "8 YOH Jo uopedde sapiivay
sanpadiiad puk

sajdpund snoualipuy sBpapmouy e pur
139(134 T4 YOH ©1 JuCiiuyjap Ay ppY
{enjea

pue Aj)zeded suoiiey 15114 PATRRY| :can:-
oy BuEinosal pur sapjunuoddo Ainusp)

juaLraleuep

adejual yoddng oy Supnosay

Beipay ydy jo says 1-a) pasapiuod ag
J0U fim sHuad LORRIILE 3)3yM SullIna

sassa30.d Ajw pue Asjod sauryul

aBeipay Jujajoau| sjesodosd

1ajosd uo fuawwoand jE30) Yiim aledus

O} SUOIIEN 3511 10) #1Cy J2182.17 B a1eY)|IR 4
1Y UoIDIOpIAG

Y3 o 7 5 pus YK a4l JO OF "5 pUE ¢ 'S 19puUn
SUDJIRN 1301 4IM NUHLSBE ) [eacudde pus
udjigjioBau ayy sull 113 O) sAwMm JSPSUOD)
Sepout [iueod pur

{svow) ¥ MAIBAD {eHTD0SRYIIY
JeuciBas l paizpdn dojaaag
{swueusao

SANMNTII WU JO SANION TIRIRS
10y puoT “sBpamoiny ShouaB|pu| Jo UOKEN}U)
‘raAir] siopngiuaD paunoju) “1-3) suosap

5N pun| 121134 pue sanjrA aleiliay jo
UOfIRIIPSULE 9] LOdINS OF SWIsIURYIAL

pawadsar
210 AR Iuapyuod so) Sisenbal eyl

pue papaenBaes aje 33pay
pur Auadoad [enpajaim 38-,_?__ -n._-:m
sanuihwuos snouadipu)
Aq papsoddns Ji *spuasa) jeailopaniue
u pasn 248 saweu awd snoualipu| snsuy
spalgo alupay smausdipul
40 uojiepedas poddny 01 Bupinosas
apTt YU siesoioid JUBLRLISASD
£} WAWWA0T) puE SAfGIsucdsal
PUB 5#{D3 I3 PUR sAnIIOqEiIOD dojdAs)
saapnosal aleuey (enyna
snoual|pu) joj s3usotal jo UoRISjas
3y} J3AD |QUIUOT 13303 SUONEN 1501 BAD
t3algo pue
says alwiuay palalnBas-uou ‘UMoLY pue
PN By (|8 P1oJ2; pul 3130031 0y
\eoudde pur aumatad paz|eiuaa 2 3uis
wdopaasp pur ElEp A {aye 3
sapyjod wawraduny
318y 4| WANIop pue dOjaA2p O}
fucnen 1341 J0) Senunuoddo apacsd ey
Swiei2o)d 2A)10:0G R0 JO JURLDOIAIR
JUIWVIFADTY O) WUMULISA0D ajqeu]
WM [ERT0IRYR
) SUSN PN 15)14 JO UonediLwd
1Balp ay Loddns pur ‘#1rlua ‘apauy
o3 sjjiad yIH Uj iswainbai spapu)
syuuad YIH J9pUN pamojio) aq sadeyd
RN PUR SUTRWEL [£11582UN J0j $1E30100d
[Ramy A3 aanka) “sUotiEN 1L A PaIISIR Y
[Did4) auasun? pawsoguy pur “loud *3ay)
40 3d92U03 ByT A1RIOHI0IU) D) MOy IPIIUDT
pus ‘alniuay o3 Jujuirisad sappsoyine
BN PW-UCISPIP PUR ‘AoUNULiaAcE
sapijod ‘M SUDREN 18214 JO uoiuBoaal
HodEns 0] SwsuRRIW dogaas(]
suopeaydde yssad Pu)3jeip pur s1a8kud
Supsuyd Usym UNIRIIRITUCD Juauadod
U JURYNEUSD o {RuCRE) 18d)4 AQ pantap
su) Ajsqam youmsg AJopoary2iy ayy uo

pue 51901 [euciippRe pus Jujsy F s d pus sma] 2311134 SUDIIRN 1%L 1504

alnuay Joy {aBmasay Juay

ASajens pus yiomawey (ppusoid & dojaasg L i ‘5005 9pI-150d ‘says aleiuay
{iruonesado pus x3awils) : | I} a¥muay jemynd it g

z.uutu puR 500} 's553201d JeRp dojaaap put

03 acuepn® Awjod 10 2ApR13E0) dojaAa]

sSUOI139302d

1$139p Y 3[01 SUOIIN 18414 AITYY]

Supey-uoiszag

1o E.S.uun. peoiq e R pus anulasa
01 s¥eiay Jo uorIuyap Sy purdi
uo|udoray
s1yfiy pue sanjep snouadtpu)

ydomaweld (d1vIH) 193l01d uonjewiojsuRL| 10y UOIIEAIISUO) 38luaH T aseyd v Xjpuaddy

{a3aN3AW0D3Y A1SNOIATYY) SNOLLIO



7707 ‘£ wnany

wawaduduz sapjoyayeis— Japunoidyaeg divoH

SUo|IEhBal AyRIH 01 J9MOd - JE 'S
Aneuad pue @xdapg =965
SUOIIBAEIUIND

Buizadsdl SPIWI AL - TE 'S
VOIUIAIRNUL UDJIRAIRSRI] —- 1T S
AjUnWLY pue SAION ~ LTS

s1api0 ylom doig - 191§

uyepdadsun uossad jo venedqp - €51 'S
AIpIAR

2213 (IS YILEAT O) JUPLIEA ~ 26T &
uenpdadiuy pue A3 - 15T 'S

£19pI0 uapEANsAAULfuoadiu|

alejuay o) AHOGINe ANUF - 5T 75
UBWaALIopa — spsad BujjjAaoued

10 Bu|puadsns ‘Bupuawy - £ TT %
13D Aq

uonedissaaupfuoniadiu) sBewiay - 215
A1aaoasiq LUaday ol Aing = '8 S
usHewInu| 3315133y

alway jepuinorg 03 553238~ |Z) E S

JUHLIII0JUT PUE 2IUE||dwWo

Aljruag pue 3UaPQ - 9E 'S

Ayunwiuw - {1} §E 'S

wawaaod Jofpue

12uMD Jo SsuadiR 18 UOIBAITaLY = {Z) T2 S

1epmuI Ayl jo s1amng - {1} 0T S

uoEENEsAU] 40 UDiIadsy) aReluay

10} Aed 03 3|qey) Juavodosd - (E} 221 'S

vopeulisap

Aleusy joj uoiiesuadwe) ~ 11§

ou| BYs 10) $33) - (SHE S

wyay jpamoding-7'g
juawadeuey

sfeiuay poddns o Bujunosay

$puE) AJRai) o) UOpE[RI

uy smims adnay jo axoN = T'ZE 'S
U190

Berumy i £18{90 pAuERUN — 6T 5
anjea 330349y o uonowosd = g1 '
wouyeR Bus - B} TIT S

spue] Ayeas o3 13y Jo wonENddy ~ T'§ 'S
swydu

Awman 1o jruiSpoge jo uoneflolapap - g 'S
nopienIBa) Jayio saso sjeaid 1y =9 'S
wawuisac uo Suipuig sj 13y =5 'S
SUOREN 3531 Yum uawenly - 'S
1518w

alnuay (ruimodd - (3) pue (aHE) € 'S

suD131901d

sucfienia) SRl O JIMOJ ~ [E°S
EFDHINUWICD AOSIAPY — ZT°S

uonedajap

-Gnsfuoiela)ep jruatiumy - 100 S
JANSIUNY BYL jO SIeMOd — (1) 02 'S
aqqejear o) may - syjuuad Supoue

30 Bjpuadsns ‘Butpuauy -9 21 'S
SUOIIIPUCS PUR ‘SUDEN)Iads
‘nuswannbal Julad - 521 S

SHwiad pUAWIR IO aniE 01 JAM0Y — P'ZT S
Jepp Aq

woneRissaufunpadsy) eBniuaH - 2T 'S
Huisad Ag

uohedjisaaupfuoiaads) AINUIH -2 21§
uoneuljsag edeaH - T'TE PUR 0T 6°S
sajod aleludH |HADL] ~ £ °5

SUDHIEN JT Yyim Wausa By - 5
19y518ay allquesy

43 jo e - {ThE'S
By oy jo ssoding -~ 75

Bupyepyg-uoisiiag

LR I I

suopienBa) aywut 03 JaM04 =~ €S

spur; AJead1 €1 yopejl

o) sy adaudy Jo aieN - I2E 'S

antL

puwj ua snieys adeysay jo SN - TE S

LIDFUIAIIL uDjIRAItAld = TT 'S

siapia ylom des = 1915

uopaaalg sdnusu—- 1218

uopeulisag adeley = 1T PUROL 'G5

sa[jod AdELUBH [FRUMDIY - S

UOIR5{33] 12410 J3A0 SRAID 1Y -9 5

SUOHEN 1314 WM usUaly = 45

2215133y aPriIay |epUAGL U UDISTILD

10 10413 AG prIaje you uopINaLd - (9) E 'S

oju) aus asopup oF Esn)eE - (EXTIE 'S

1y el jo esoding - 2 °§

tuopiuyan - T ued

uopuioray

51y pue sanjep snovadipu)

yiomaweld (d1yIH) 193014 uoiEWIOSUBI | Y uoieAIBsUO) aFejiay T aseyd v xipuaddy

- s * @

SNOWLJ3S YOH






OCperations
Economics Inc.

Masset Airport Fees Analysis

SUBMITTED TO:
The Village of Masset
22 August 2022

SUBMITTED BY:
Operations Economics Inc.



Masset Airport Fees Review 22 August 2022

Masset Airport Fees Review

Current Situation

Like most municipalities that own an airport, the Village of Masset subsidizes the operations of
the Masset Airport. The COVID pandemic has hit the economy and society hard in general, but
airports particularly hard. Municipalities have had to increase subsidies to airports because they
lost most of their revenue in 2020 and 2021 when scheduled aviation and tourism both declined
rapidly.

The airport has also experienced operating and capital budget increases. Some of these are
described in the following table. This table does not include federal and provincial government
revenues received to offset these expenses.

Table 1: Masset Airport Expenses within Three Years.

Item Cost

New fuelling system $840,000 |

ey T TR e e '$52,_0b0_.
' Runway lighting _ ] ~ $940,000 |

Septic system B ~ $108,000 |
I_S_ﬂn_s_enh_a T 50,000
| Loader | $132,000 |
Pﬁdfﬁi:n_truck and deicing equipment S __ S $410,000
Storage building | $99,000 |
' Staff increases a_nd_t_raining‘* $55'000_i
 Engineering consultants* $200,000
| Administration system BT T ﬁs_.ﬁﬁo“
NOTES
* Qver three years
** per year

The Village of Masset has not regularly increased its fees with times, and is seeking an analysis
of fees at comparable airports in BC and recommendations on appropriate fees for the site
going forward.

OEI- 1



Masset Airport Fees Review

Provincial Context

22 August 2022

BC is home to a wide variety of airports, from Canada's second largest airport (YVR) to small
private grass strips. To provide relevant comparison of fees, comparable airports were chosen.
The eight airports chosen for comparison to Masset are Bella Coola, Powell River, Prince

Rupert, Sandspit, Smithers, Tofino-Long Beach, Trail, and Williams Lake,

The table below compares typical daily flights, Pasco flights, and ownership of the airports.
Comments on these categories include

* Scheduled flights. Most of these airports receive only one scheduled flight per day (six of
nine including Masset). Six of these airports receive smaller turbo prop aircraft such
B1900s and Saab 340s for scheduled flights. Three of the sites received larger Q400s.

» Pacific Coastal flights. Five of the airports chosen {and Masset) receive scheduled Pasco
flights. The other three airports do not receive Pasco flights but are in Northwest BC.
These are Prince Rupert, Sandspit, and Smithers. YVR-Massett is Pasco’s longest route.

e Ownership. Eight of the nine airports considered are owned by municipal governments.
The exception is Sandspit which is a Remote airport under the National Airports Policy
(NAP) and is owned and operated by Transport Canada.

Table 2: Comparator BC Airports
Scheduled flights

Pacific Coastal

Municipal Airport

per typical day flights Ownership

Bella Coola 1 x B1900 Y Y
‘Masset | 1xSaab 340 Y N y
Powell River 4 x B1900 Y Y E
PrinceRupert |  1xQ400 N E T
i_'Sarfc'Is'piim SR 1 x Q400 N . N 5
' Smithers 1 x Q400 N Y |
' Tofino-Long Beach | 1 x Saab 340 WA | - Y M |
' Trail 2 x B1800 ' Y Y

‘Williams Lake - 2xB1%00 Y - 7T ]

Notes: Murﬁip_aﬁinp_on: Bella Coola is operated by the Heiltsuk First Nation; Tofino-Long Beach_I;Jb'era'ted 'Ey the
Alberni-Clayoquot Regional District.




Masset Airport Fees Review 22 August 2022

Regional Airport Fees Comparison

Airport fees are difficult to analyze because municipalities use a wide variety of fee structures to
charge for flights. Detail on the fees at the comparator airports is provided in Appendix A, and
highlights of the fees are provided below. Masset's fees are attached as Appendix B.

* Passenger fees. Seven of the nine airports charge passenger fees ranging from $5 per
arriving and departing passenger to $30 per departing passenger.

» Landing fees. Seven of the nine airports examined charge landing fees. These are
charged per 1,000 kg based on the Maximum Takeoff Weight (MTOW) of the aircraft.
These are only charged when aircraft land as the definition implies.

» Terminal fees. Six of the nine airports examined charge terminal fees for use of the Air
Terminal Building (ATB). These fees are charged according to how many passenger
seats are available on the aircraft. A Beech 1800 has 19 seats, for example. Bella Coola
Airport charges a terminal fee of $180 per arriving Beech 1900.

Comparing Fees for Saab 340 Flights

As the fee structures for regional airports vary significantly, it is difficult to easily compare The
method which has the most value is comparing fees for a specific aircraft. For the purposes of
this project the Saab 340 was chosen because Pasco uses it to serve Masset.

For this analysis, the following assumptions are used:

34 seats on the aircraft

21 passengers per arriving and departing flight

GTOW of 13,605 kg

Fees are estimated for an arriving and departing flight (to reflect the different fee
structures of the airports)

b R ) B

The table below compares the fees for an arriving and departing Saab 340 flight. The columns
describe the passenger fees charged, the landing fees, and the terminal fees charged at each
airport, and the total fees. The final column shows the percentage of fees for each site
compared to the most expensive airport, Smithers. Prince Rupert total fees are comparable to
Smithers fees, though structured differently. The total fees for these airports vary from $561 to
$4,884.38. Masset’s total fees come in at 22% of the highest fee.




Masset Airport Fees Review 22 August 2022

Table 3: Comparative Fees for a Saab 340 flight arriving and departing

Passenger Landing Terminal TOTAL % of
fee fees fees highest fee

Bella Coola | $504.00A‘ $1,360.50 | $42000 | $2,284.50 47%
Masset | $512.40 | $564.61 | $1,077.01 f—zzai"
PowellRiver | $25200 | $25200 5%
Prince Rupert | $1,008.00 $74828  $3,06000  $4,81628 9%
Sandspit | | s8e113|  $2,561.56 |  $3,45269  71%
' Smithers | $630.00 $819.02 $3,43536 |  $4,884.38  100% |
| Airport
Ti‘oﬁno-Long ' $210.00 | $551.00 | Ly $761.00 16%
Beach '

Trail $680.25 N $680.25 | 14%
‘Williams Lake '_'s'-l,'osbboi | $1,050.00 T

Comparison with Sandspit Airport

Sandspit deserves special attention because it is the only site that could be considered
competitive, although they are on separate islands and separated by a ferry. Sandspit fees are
considerably higher than Masset fees as the table above shows. A Saab 340 turning at Masset
would be charged $1,077 and a flight turning at Sandspit would be charged $3,452.69, more
than triple the Masset Airport fees,

Findings

The following findings are noted regarding Masset Airport fees

A. Masset Airport fees are relatively low compared to other BC Municipal airports, at 22% of
the highest fee.

a. However, it should alsc be noted that the three airports with the highest fees are
all served by Air Canada rather than Pasco. These airports support larger aircraft
as well.

B. Masset does not charge terminal fees. The majority of comparator airports do.

C. Fees at Sandspit are significantly higher than fees at Masset.
Options

Given Masset's fee structure, it could reasonably increase its fees and the following are options.

a) Increase all existing fees by a percentage. An increase by the inflation rate over the
last few years alone would be significant. While inflation in 2022 is unusually high, it is not

OEI- | “




Masset Airport Fees Review

22 August 2022

recommended that the municipality mirror this unless it can show that its cost have
increased at the rate of inflation. Two increase scenarios are shown below assuming a
gross increase in fees, 2% and 5%.

Table 4: Fee Increase per Saab 340 flight Scenario

Current Fee

Current Fees

2% increase

5% increase
$1,077

$1,077

Fee Increase

Total |

$0
$1,077

$54
IGEE

b} Add aterminal fee to the existing fee structure. For this scenario it is assumed that
Masset adopts the terminal fee schedule of Prince Rupert. The schedule is in Appendix
A. For a Saab 340 each flight would be charged $90 per flight upon arrival. This is
neither the highest nor the lowest terminal fee option.

c) Increase all fees by a percentage and add a terminal fee. This scenario assumes a fee
increase in existing fees, and the addition of a terminal fee. The proposed increase is
shown in the table below including the percentage increase and the terminal fee.

Table 5: Fee Increase per Saab 340 flight Scenario

Current Fee i

Current Fees

2% increase

5% increase

Fee Increase

' Terrﬁinal Fee

Total

$1,077 $1,077 $1,077

$0 ; $22 $54
$90 ‘ $90 | 90
$1,167 | $1,189 $1221

The combined fee increase is significant. The 2% + terminal fee increase increases fees by 10%
per flight, and the 5% + terminal fee increase is a 13% increase per flight.

Recommendations

Given the continuing fee expenses that the Masset Airport faces, it is recommended that it
increase its base aviation fees by 5% across the board and implement the Prince Rupert
Terminal Fee schedule.

OEI | ;



Masset Airport Fees Review

Appendix A: Airport Fee Comparisons

Airpont
Balla Conls

Frince Rupert

Powell Rivert
Sasdapit

Senithers Alrport*™
Tofino-Long Beach
Trad see

Willisms Lake

-
-

ves

Passanget fee
leach way)

512
$24

$12

3

“w
o~

nding Fees {per 1,000 kg)
upto5000kg  5001-10000kw > 10001 kg
55 8 $10
«21,000kg 21,000 - 24000 kg 24,000 - 45,000 kg
$5.5 34 $1.5
«11,000kg  21,000-45000kg > 45000kg
£6.55 sa28 5981
020000k 20,001 - 45,000 kg » 45,00 kg
602 7.5 $9.1
<10000kg  10,001-45000kg > 45000 kg
$1.20 $4.0% s5.08

57400 kg [rer 1,000 kg

szsl

Departure only

55

Per pattenget fee 10 deparfured paly

Fees statement makes reference to special desl with scheduled air cartier

> 45,000 kg
$20

Minimum fes
sto
Minimum fee
S12.0

$21.10
Minimum fee
515

22 August 2022
Fermingl Fee (seats)
810 11-20 1-30
S0 i §300
o9 10-1% 16-32%
520 515 5§52
-9 10-15 16-25
$13.96  S2ro1 saum
D9 1038 1625
s1872 SWrAr S51Hd

3140

2645
$90

2645
$75.34

$101.04

4150

4660

$130
$107.60

Sl4.28

51-60

€1-89
5210

6189
5172.24
109
5230.98

50-125
$295

90-115
$236.94
#0125
531275

126-150
$350

126-150
$180.00
»125-150



Masset Airport Fees Review 22 August 2022

Appendix B: Masset Airport Fees

The current fees for Masset Airport are provided on the following pages.




I MASSET MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
FEE SCHEDULE A

Effective: January 1, 2017

Aeronautical Fees Jet A Fuel Discount Pr
_LANDING FEE RETAIL DISCOUNT
MTOW $/1,000 kg Litres Purchased | Discount/Litre
< §,000 wm $ m.mm.. 1,000 - 1,998 3 cents
6,000 - 15,000 _mP $ 3.95 2,000 - 2,999 4 cents
> 15000 kg $ 4,95 3,000 - 3,998 5 cents
Minimum Charge $ 16.00 4,000 - 4,998 B cents
5,000 - 5,999 7 conts
PASSENGER FEE 6,000 - 6,999 8 cents
| Deplaned Passenger | $ 12.00 7,000 - 7,989 9 cents
Enplaned Passenger | $ 12.00 8,000 - 8,999 10 cents
3 9,000 - 8,989 11 cants
AIRCRAFT PARKING FEE 210,000 12 cents
MTOW DAILY
< 10,000 kg 3 7.50
< 20,000 kg $ 15.00 ANNUAL DISCOUNT
< 30,000 kg 5 22.50 Litres Purchased | Discount/Litre
< 40,000 xml 3 30.00 2 100,000 5 cents
< 50,000 _mm $ 37.50 2 125,000 6 cents
< 60,000 kg $ 4500 2 150,000 7 cents
< 70,000 kg $ 52.50 2 175,000 8 cents
< mcbcclxm 5 60.00 2 200,000 9 cents
< 90,000 kg 5 67.50 2 225,000 10 cents
2 90,000 kg $ 75.00 2 250,000 11 cents
2 275,000 12 cents
AFTER HOURS SERVICE FEE 2 300,000 13 cents
Per Hour $ 75.00 2 325,000 14 cenis
Minimum dmmqmm $ 150.00 2 350,000 15 cenis




MASSET MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

FEE SCHEDULE B

Effective: January 1, 2018

Aeronautical Fees Jet A Fuel Discount Progiram
LANDING FEE RETAIL DISCOUNT

_MTOW $/1,000 kg | Litres Purchased | Discount/Litre
< 6,000 kp $ 3.00 1,000 - 1,980 3 cents
6,000 - 15,000 kg | $ 4.05 2,000 - 2,988 m cents
> 15000 kg 5 5.10 ) 3,000 - 3,089 5 cents
Minimum Charge | § 15.25 4,000 - 4,889 € cants
5,000 - 5,989 7 cents
PASSENGER FEE 6,000 - 6,999 8 cants
Deplaned W@m:mm_. $ 12.10 7,000 - 7,989 9 cants
Enplaned _ummmmzmo_. $ 12.10 8,000 - 8,959 10 cents
: 9,000 - 9,999 11 cants
AIRCRAFT PARKING FEE 2 10,000 12 cents

MTOW DAILY
< 10,000 kg $ 7.65

< 20,000 kg $ 15.30 ANNUAL DISCOUNT _

< 30,000kg $ 22.95 Litres Purchased | DiscountiLitre
<40000kg | § 30.50 | 2 100,000 5 cents
< 50,000 rm| $ 38.25 z Mm.m.occ 8 cents
< mc.ooE 3 45.90 2 ._mo.ooo 7 cents
< 70,000 kg $ 53.55 2 175,000 8 cents
< 80,000 kg $ 61.20 2 200,000 9 cents
< 80,000 kg $ 68.85 2 225,000 10 cents
2 90,000 Wm $ 76.50 2 250,000 11 cents
2 275,000 12 cents
AFTER HOURS SERVICE FEE 2 300,000 13 cents
Per Hour [ 76.50 2 325,000 14 cenls
[ Minimum Charge 153.00 ¢ [ =350,000 | 15cents




J MASSET MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

FEE SCHEDULE C
Effective: January 1, 2019

Aeronautical Fees Jet A Fuel Discount Program
_LANDING FEE RETAIL DISCOUNT _
MTOW $1,000 kg | Litres Purchased | DiscountiLitre
< 6,000 kg $ 3.05 1,000 - 1,968 3 cents
6,000-15,000kg | % 4.15 | 2,000 - 2,988 4 cents
> 15000 kg $ 5.25 3,000 - 3,998 5 cents
Minimum Charge | $ 15.50 4,000 - 4,999 6 cents
= N 5,000 - 5,998 7 cents
PASSENGER FEE 6,000 - 6,999 8 cents
| Deplaned Passenger [ § 12.20 7,000 -7,999 9 cents
Enplaned Passenger | $ 12.20 8,000 - 8,999 10 cenls
8,000 9,998 11 cents
AIRCRAFT PARKING FEE 2 10,000 12 cents
MTOW DAILY
< 10,000 kg s 7.80 X
<20,000kg |5 15.60 ANNUAL DISCOUNT
< 30,000 kg $ 23.40 Litres Purchased | DiscountiLitre
< 40,000 kg $ 31.20 2 100,000 5 cents
< 50,000 kg $ 39.00 2 126,000 6 cents
< 60,000 kg 3 46.80 2 150,000 7 cents
< 70,000 kg $ 54.60 2 175,000 8§ cents
< 80,000 kg $ 62.40 = 200,000 9 cents
< 80,000 kg $ 70.20 2 225,000 10 cenis
2 80,000 kg $ 78.00 2 250,000 11 cenis
2 275,000 12 cenis
AFTER HOURS SERVICE FEE 2 300,000 13 cents
Per Hour ] 78.00 2 325,000 14 cents
[ WMinimum Charge | $___156.00] [ = 350.000 T8 cents




Masset Airport Fees Review 22 August 2022

Appendix C: Helicopter Analysis

Air carriers typically consider airports from a total cost perspective. One consideration for
Masset is Sandspit potentially being used as an alternate gateway for the fishing lodges north of
Haida Gwaii. The cost analysis previously considered shows that Sandspit has significantly
higher airport fees than Masset.

This section considers the relative cost of flying passengers to lodges from Sandspit versus
Masset. For this analysis the incremental cost of flying passengers between Sandspit and
Masset only is considered because this would be the add-on cost for using Sandspit as opposed
to using the Massett for helicopter transfers.

Incremental cost increase of operating a transfer helicopter from Sandspit
rather than Masset

Helicopter Sikorsky S76
Typical speed 139 knots per hour
Typical cost per operating hour $2,279 / hour
Return trip time, Sandspit to 0.7 hours
Masset

Operating cost per round trip $1,574

As the table shows, it would cost approximately $1,574 more per round trip to transit
passengers from Sandspit rather than Masset. The fee an operator charged would be at least
double the estimated cost, therefore at least $3,148 per trip, and probably more.




Masset Airport Fees Review 22 August 2022

Operations Economics Inc.

Suite 900 - 1021 West Hastings Street
Vancouver VGE 0C3

Canada

1-604-417-5642

info@operationseconomics.com

Operaticns
Economics fnc




} o4 NORTH COAST

REGIONAL DISTRICT

il Sl

s ———— i

October 3, 2022

Mayor & Council
Village of Masset

PO Box 68

Masset, BC VOT 1MO
Email: vom@mhtv.ca

Re: Invitation to Review and Comment on the NCRD Draft Solid Waste Management
Plan

This lefter is an invitation to ask for your comments and feedback on the North Coast Regional
District's {NCRD) 2022 Draft Solid Waste Management Plan (SWMP} that has recently been
posted on the NCRD website here: htips://www.ncrdbc.com/sites/default/files/docs/swmp-
draft-forrelease-220912-full_0.pdf. We value your feedback and input and hope that you will
give this strong consideration.

As required by the BC Environmental Management Act, the NCRD started the process of
updating their 1997 SWMP in July 2021 with the formation of a Public and Technical Advisory
Committee (PTAC). Sperling Hansen Associates (SHA) was hired in November 2021 to assist
with the update and has thus far presented three technical memoranda to the PTAC and the
Draft SWMP to the PTAC and the Board of Directors who provided their approval for public
consultation on September 9, 2022. We have appreciated the participation of Mr. Bret
Johnston on the PTAC.

A SWMP is important for the region as it will form the basis of policy, programs and bylaws for
the diversion and disposal of household and commercial refuse in the region, and the financial
planning for the required environmental protection and upgrades to the recycling depots,
transfer stations and landfill. The proposed increased costs to operate and maintain the
pregrams and facilities will be borne by the users and taxpayers in the region over the next
five to ten years.

With the Draft SWMP available for review and comment, we are seeking input from you by
letter, email or through public meetings at the following dates, times and places:

Method Location Details
NCRD c/o Daniel Fish, CAO
Mail Address: 14 - 342 31 Avenue
Prince Rupert, BC V8J1LS
Email Email Address: info@ncrdbe.com
Public Meetings




£ NORTH COAST

REGIONAL DISTRICT

i m— .

e
I A AR A

Method Location Petails

October 24, 2022 Haida Gwaii: Masset Old Massett Community Hall
3:30 pm - 6:00 pm ] 348 Eagle Avenue
October 25, 2022 " - - . Daajing (?-mds Il
3:30 om — 6:00 bm Haida Gwaii: Daajing Giids Eric Ross Room

i et £ 134 Bay Street
October 28, 2022 . Prince Rupert Library

P Rupert:

3:30 pm - 6:30 pm e 100 6% Avenue

Virtual Meeting ; i Ao

il nvitation link included and wi

e 22022 _ Zoom Invitation: be broadly circulated to the
6:00 pm — 8:00 pm https:/fus06web.zoom.us/|/84287304958 public

The project team will also be available to attend a meeting with you individually (staff, Council,
Board of Directors, etc) virtually should you want an opportunity to ask questions during a
regularly scheduled corporate meeting.

The attached three tables highlight the strategies being put forward for implementation as well
as the estimated costs for the strategies and other capital upgrades, studies and new
equipment required over the next five years, Cost recovery has not been included in the Five-
Year Financial Plan at this time as this will require discussion amongst the financial managers
and Board of Directors.

Once all of the comments and feedback are consolidated the Draft SWMP will be updated
and then presented as the final SWMP for the PTAC and Board of Director’s approval.
Submission of the updated SWMP to the Ministry of Environment and Climate Change
Strategy (ENV) is expected to occur upon Board of Director's approval in the spring of 2023.

Your input is invaluable and essential to this process, and we look forward to hearing from
you by January 31, 2023. If you have any questions, please contact the undersigned at 250-
624-2002 (ext.8) or toll free at 888-301-2002.

Sincerely,
Daniel Fish
Chief Administrative Officer

Attachments: Tables 17, 18 and 19
Cc: Leonard Cook, Environmental Protection Officer, MECC



42 NORTH COAST

REGIONAL DISTRICT

p gty LA

Table 1: Diversion Potential Summary

Initiative | Waste Reduction, Reuse and Recycling

Diversion
Potential
{Tonnes)

A1 Imptrove the operational efficiency of the NCRD waste management N/A
system
A-2 Continue monitoring solid waste management facilities and services N/A
A3 Improve service delivery to rural and underserved communities in N/A
the Island and Mainland service areas
A-4 Improve transportation of materials between service areas N/A
A-5 Develop cost recovery models N/A
A-6 Establish a permanent Island Solid Waste Advisory Committee N/A
A-T Expand the list of prohibited wastes N/A
A-8 Update Bylaws N/A
R-1 Fund a Waste Reduction Coordinator 483
R-2 Assist users and improve their participation in waste segregation See R-1
and diversion programs
R-3 Maximize compliance with new and existing stewardship programs 400
Optimize recycling efficiencies by increasing diversion rates for
R-4 residential materials or commercial generators that are below 100
average ] |
R-5 Develop a strategy to reduce single-use items 10
R-6 Develop a food waste reduction strategy 900
R-7 Collect household hazardous waste (HHW) 5
R-8 Encourage reuse such as thrift stores 30
R-G Work with local bicycle retailers for inclusion in the Tire Stewardship 18
g BC bicycle tire program g
-1 Encourage initiatives for commercial organics diversion 225
-2 Enhance and enforce IC| solid waste source control 375
-3 Recover costs of IC| PPP processing N/A
CRD-1 | Clean wood waste diversion and re-use N/A
Total waste diversion potential 2,530




J2 NORTH COAST

REGIONAL DISTRICT

§ s ] 5 S s
'S E B 5 § s
s B B $ s s
5 E 3 5 s s
§ 5 $ 5 3 s
s s s s s s
S 400,000
] 2810|S 206t (5 29610|S 20610 (S 29610|S 20610
S 2908505 290850 (5 290850 (S 290850 |5 290850 |5 290850
H 9900 $ 9.900 | 5 9.900 | 5 900015  9900|S 9900
S  6150000$ -5 -1 300001s -8 -
TOTAL| S 2962250 (S 791390 (S 791390 |$ 821380 {$ 7M.390(§ 791,380
§ 488070 |5 55444015 576617 |S 500682 |5 6236695 648616
R-1 Fund a Wade Reducton Coordingor s $6847|S 48721 (S D670 |5 5269TI'S 54804
Suppart Services s 74660 |S 82945 |S 80752 |S 83982 (S E7342|S 00835
A8 Update Bybws & Website! s 5300
Staff Expenses s 8.600 | § 6864 [§  7139|S 7424 |$  77121|$ 8030
Menberships & Professional Fees s 15000 (S 15600 |S 16224 |5 16873 |S 17548[S 18250
Office Expenses s 9620|S 10317 |S 10729|$ 11189 |S 11605|S 12069
qugg_g@pmmmn _ 5 55300 |S  57512|S 50812 |§  62205|S B4693|S 67281
s 92308 95095 9963/S 1036825 1079815 11230
5 500 52[S 54118 562§ 5855 608
Shop Supphes and Small Tools s 10900 |$ 20696|S 21524 (S  22385|S 23280(S 24211
Fachties Repaw & Mamtenance B 2650|S 2355 |S 24408 |$ 25478 |5 26497 |§ 27557
Faakiies Operation - —IHE =HH = OH -18 =S H40001S 56,180
R-7 Colect HHWY| ] 5 53000|S 58160
Faakties Insurance s 125408 12042 | S 13563 |8 14106 |5  14670(S 15257
Montaring & Lab Testing ] 665018 6916 (S 7193 (8 7480 18 7780|S 809
Unities $ 24720|S 25709 |S  26737|S 27807 |S 28919|S  30.076
Legal 5 1000 S 1040 |S 10028 1125 |S 1a70]s 1217
Advertsing & Promotion B 1,200 | § 1248 |5 2385 2404 1S a344|S 3477
I A7Epandlisof ProhbitdWasel | _ s 100ls  1w4is 10| 4237
R-5 Develop & Food Waste Sirategy I_ s 750 | 8 780
Vehicle Insurance s 16880 | § 1747 (8 1817 (S 1800 | 1985|S 2044
Venice FuelLubncants $ 13200|$ 13992 |S  14832|S  15721|S 1666515  17.665
Vehicie Repair & Mantenance 3 55500(S S57720|5 60029|S 6243 |5 64927|S 67524
Debt Payments B 25650[S  25650(S 25650 (S 256505 25850[S 25650
Transler to Reserves (Captal/Planning) | S 77970|S  77070{S 77970|S  47970|S 77970|§ 77970
Contribution to Reserves S 4,130 | ¢ 4130 {8 41308 430 |S  4130|S 4130
JOTAL|S  926070]% 1,011,214 |$ 1043220 |$ 1,050,936 | $ 1,174,927 | § 1,217,948
, NET S 203180 |S 219824 |S 251830 |§ 229546 |S 383537 |5 426,558
CAPITAL
| Masntand Rec ycling Buiding Renavation § 2036180
| R-3 Maimize Stewardship | — s B0 = ]
i I R-7 Colect HHW| e e TR s 200
-4 legal s 20 |
SWMP 5 Year Review $ 15000
| OpanicsManagement s 20,000
Wagte Ctaracienization Sudy § 7000
Baler 5 20,000
TOTAL] S 2035180(S 20231 |$ -]$  30080|S 70200[S 15000
NET 5 . 8 240055 § 251830 & 259826 .§ 453737 .3 441558




47 NORTH COAST

REGIONAL DISTRICT

Table 3: Island Solid Waste Five Year Financial Plan

REVENUE
Tipping Fees S S 108630 |S 108630 (S 108630
User Fees - Collection Seraces -] § 7041308 T04130|S 704130
User Fees - Other § S 51900 (S 519003 51.900
T ax Requabon b S 296943 |S 30716645 328857
EarlyfLate Payment -5 -§ 8030 |-$ 8.050 |-$ 8,050
Grants
Interest/investment Income 53 s 6020 [ S 6020 |$ S5 8020
{Sundry Income s H 5500 |8 5500 |8 5500
Loan Proceeds
Transer from Reserves [ s 'S TS s -
Trander from COVID Reserve (310) S § 1,000 | § 1000 | S 1.000
Recycled Commodites Revenue H S 49300 | S 48.300 (S 48.300
= TOTAL $ $ 1294373 (8 1224596 | $ 1.246.287
EXPEND{TURES el e B ; T T |
Wages & Beneits 5 622823 |S 647736 (S 700592
R-1 Fund a Waste Redue ton Coordnator [ amls 50670 S 54,804 |
Suppon Services S 106484 15§ 110743 ]S 119779
| Agisiands Sciid Waste Asvsory Commizes A= e =
A8 Updaie Bylavs & Webs s
IStafl Expenses 5 S 1571 |8 78748 8517
I emberships & Prolessional Fees 5 $ 61368 (S  11000|S 11,898
Office Expenses S ] 15078 | § 15681 |8 16,960
Freight/Transpertation S $ 27256 | § 2837 (S 30.660
[Facddies Repar & I4antenance _$__ H 19739 8§ 20522 |8 22204
!Facames Wsurance == s 5 4748 S 4938|S 5341
Permmis & Licenses (315) S ] 270 | S 2818 304
londonng & Lab Testng - s S 17ls 121828 13176
Rent S S 60981 | S 6342018 88,595
Utiktes e [T S 8047 1S B389 | S 9,052
Legat S 5 2183 (8 2250 (S 2433
Advertising & Promolion s 1§ 212 |s 283§ 3842
A-7 Expand List of Prohibes Waste| s 1900 (S 11448 1297
R-6 Deveiop a Food Wasie Sirategy [3 80
Vehicle Insurance 1 7030 (S TN2|S 718048
Vehicle FuellLubricants s __72009|s 77378 (S 86717
Vehicle Repar & Maintenance S 52098 |S 55118 |§ 59616
|Vehicle Lease (Loan) [313) = 5 26330 | S 26330 S 26330
Contract Servces 08§ 278926 |S 28127918 297 147
CRO-1 Clean Wood Waste Diversion and L 12 S e —
=S FN-1 Ma!n!mn:e of of Transter Stations| S E 260018 2600 |§ 2800
| _RN-3 Probiem Wasle - Al Hh a] o AR | SR | 1 Y
m-apruuemwn- b <G T
Transfer 1o Reserves $ 27000 | § 27000 |5 27.000
Contrbution to Reserves S— s 74020 (S 740208 14020
Problem Waste (Ao Huks. Crushables Scrap betal) s 20000 (s  20000(S 20.000
TOTAL $ 1,392,318 1,490,078 [§ 1484418 | § 1.532, 1!1 1,592,091
NET -§ 215706 [-§ 2596821 | 296 982 |- 345804
,rgmml.
Haulng (313
Lanati (31
R-3 Madmize SEwariship $ 2720
R4 llegal Dumping Managemert| S
OCC Bater| 30.000
Phase 5 Isiand Landfl Closure| [
Isiand L andfi! DOCP 75 000
SWMP 5 Year Review 10.000
s 3
Waste Characterization Shudy 3
Roll O Containers. 5 -1 240.000
15W. Pekup) S 105000
TOTAL] [ 105000 |$ 357,720 (S 10.000
NET 10 -3 380706 -8 827541 -3 326882 -3 355,804




Village of Masset | Box 68, Masset BC, VOT 1M0
T. 250.626.3995 | F: 250.626.3968 | email: cac@masset.ca

Wings. Waves. Wilderness - www.massetbc.com

From: Madison Power-Stephens <mpowerstephens@uvic.ca>
Sent: September 26, 2022 9:08 PM

To: cag@masset.ca; vompw@mbhtv.ca
Subject: Undergraduate Research Project in Masset and Old Massett

Hello,

My name is Madison, and | am an honours student in the department of geography at the University of
Victoria working with Dr, Eva Kwoll.

This year | am intending to complete a research project that analyzes both coastal erosion and community
vulnerability and adaptive capacity. | would like to follow-up on the extensive work done by Dr. lan Walker
and the Geological Survey from 2004-2007 (now 15 years ago!) along the Northeast coast of Haida Gwaii. The
2007 report is attached here for your

reference: https://www.cakex.org/sites/default/files/Coastal%20Vulnerability%20CA.pdf.

The research | am looking to complete specifically relates to measuring coastal erosion in the past decade and
how erosion and associated erosional hazards impact the Masset and Old Massett community. This would
look like conducting interviews and surveys with the community, and governmental and council members, to
understand the local perception and awareness of erosional risks and to determine the social, cultural,
political, and environmental systems that enable or constrain individuals and the community to respond and
adapt to the erosional hazards. This research would be led by local knowledge and interests and would
hopefully yield results to support the community:.

To do this, however, | am hoping to receive permission and support from the Village of Masset and The OId
Masset Village Council. This support would look like reviewing the interview and survey questions to ensure
that that are appropriate for the community and putting up recruitment posters or referring anyone you may
think to be a good fit for this research. Myself, and my supervisor, Dr. Eva Kwoll, plan to come to Northern
Haida Gwaii later in the year for a short period to conduct some of the research and meet potential
participants. The research project would end in April of next year so that the results will be made available to
the community within a short time frame,

Thank you for your time; | hope to hear from you soon,

Madison Power-Stephens

Living, working and learning as a guest on the territory of the IaRWenan, Songhees, Esquimalt, and
WSANEC peoples.

BSc Student

Department of Geography

University of Victoria

DTB B123 - Coastal Geomorphology Lab



Community Interview Questions — Draft

How long have you lived in your community?
What do you do within your community?
In the past ten to fifteen years:

o Have you noticed any changes in the beach, such as different sediment sizes, changes in
size, or changes in any features?

o Have you noticed any changes in the ocean, such as changes in tides, changes in sea-
level, or changes in wave sizes?

© Have you noticed any changes in storms or storm events?

o Have you noticed any changes in wind?

o Besides any of the changes mentioned above, have you noticed any other
environmental changes around the coast of Masset?

o Has there been anything related to the environment that has previously impacted the
community?

Are you concerned about the changing environment and what that could mean for your future?
Do you feel at risk or concerned about where you live in relationship to the coast?

How connected, supported, and a part of your community do you feel? Are there community
programs and/or events that you attend?

What do you think makes people healthy or unhealthy? How would you assess the health of
yourself and you community?

How would you assess the employment within your community? Depending on the answer, a
follow up may be: Do you have any ideas of how to strengthen employment within your
community?

How would you assess the education within you community?

Do you know of any youth programs that may support education, recreation, or culture?

Are you aware of how much food you are able to buy/achieve locally?

How do you feel your individual and community access to resources is?

How would you assess transportation, roads, and access to the mainland in Haida Gwaii?

Do you feel that you, your family, and your community is equipped to manage changes or an
emergency?

Are you aware of any emergency action plans in place within your community?



Community Interview Questions — Draft

Do you know of people within your community who are equipped with emergency skills and
may be able to provide support during any potential times of emergency or stress?

What do you feel makes yourself, your family, and your community strong and resilient in light
of changes?

What do you feel could strengthen and support yourself, your family, and your community in
light of changes?



Lianne TreEanier

From: Chris & Sandra Chanin <cschanin@telus.net>

Sent: September 29, 2022 4:48 PM

To: vomadmin@mbhtv.ca

Subject: Fwd:

Attachments: 20220914_215120,jpg; 20220914_215129 jpg; 20220914_215108.jpg; 20220928_

220145 jpg; 20220914_210651 jpg; 20220914_215051,jpg; 20220914_215143 jpg

-----—--- Forwarded message ---------

From: Chris & Sandra Chanin <cschanin@telus.net>
Date: Thu, Sep 29, 2022 at 4:14 PM

Subject:

To: Chris & Sandra Chanin <cschanin@telus.net>

Hello LeeAnne,

My name is Chris Chanin. I am one of many persons and several user groups that use the Masset indoor rink
for physical acitivity. Our group uses

the facility specifically on Wednesdays and Friday nights for adul/teen roller hockey. Participants come from
all communities in Haida Gwaii which include Masset, Old Masset, Port Clements, Skidegate, Queen Charlotte
and Sandspit.

The photos Left to right 1-6, will help show and explain our request for an upgrade to the facility for several
different reasons.

Room #1 photo 6 shows the complete operational washroom which has (3) toilets and a sink in the first room
as you enter the rink hallway area,

The next room #2 (Potential shower room) shown by Photos 1, 2, 3 is located directly next to the operational
working washroom from photo 6, and has 2 urinals and 1 toilet in this room which is currently being used as a
storage room for tennis nets/pickleball nets and is not used as a bathroom.

The next room #3 is an electrical storage room and canister vaccum room with two rows of hanging hooks on
the wall. This room is shown in photo 5.

The next room #4 is the dressing room which players dress in. No photo for this room.
Photo 4 shows the seating/viewing area for spectators of sports.

Photo 35 is of players at the rink the other night from left to right Lenny Arrons, Mark Grinder and myself Chris
Chanin.

During any regular physical activity players sweat, and that sweat is magnified by wearing full hockey
equipment during the 2 hour session and coming into contact and sweat from other players during the

game. When players are done playing they undress from their gear, but have no option to use a shower before
leaving the rink to their vehicles, and eventually go home. This is not such a big deal for the local players in

1



Masset who may have a short 5 minute drive home, but when you have to drive an hour to get back to the south
end of Haida Gwaii with 4-5 players in one vehicle while sitting in your own sweat, this is not a very sanitary
option.

There is a practicle and healthy solution that would involve room #2 being converted from a washroom that is

currently being used as a storage room to a (3) stall shower room with a sink, soap dispenser, mirror and wall
hooks and sitting bench.

Likely a conversion of this room would require the use of a carpenter and plumber to make this change
happen. As there are serveral user groups for this facility, this change would not only benefit the Adult roller
hockey group but other user groups.

There is a potential for the change to occur at the cost of the owner of the facility or possibly a written grant
could be submitted to Gwaii Trust seeking funds to upgrade this facility.

Please forward this request to the appropriate department that would handle this request for modifation to the
facility.

You can contact myself via email or cell at 250-510-3275 at anytime.

Sincerly,

Chris Chanin
On Behalf of the Skidegate Teen/Adult Roller Hockey Group.



Lianne Treeanier

From: VOMPW <vompw@mbhtv.ca>
Sent: October 3, 2022 1:45 PM

To: ‘Lianne Trepanier'

Ce: cac@masset.ca

Subject: RE:

Lianne, | have taken the liberty to c.c. Josh, as well.
1 agree with what is stated.

The first difficulty is that we need to ensure that we are comfortable with the status quo of a single muiti-gender
lavatory, for the foreseeable future. If we are we should probably investigate working towards this outcome. Starting
with roughing in a shower and ventilation in the unused men’s bathroom.

If we are not, we would have to re-activate the men’'s washroom, and investigate plumbing a shower in each.

Either way, we would need to think about security, as vandalism to bathrooms is quite a bit more expensive than just
the roller rink proper. Perhaps a separate key for the showers for each user group? I'm not sure.

I tend to broadly think that getting a contractor to install a shower from start to finish would be mare efficient than
having Public Works do part of this, as we did the rough-in for a shower in the weight room, and that made a future
shower very dependent on a specific installation.

Hope that helps,
sylvan

From: Lianne Trepanier [mailto:vomadmin@mhtv.ca)
Sent: Monday, October 3, 2022 11:52 AM

To: vompw@mhtv.ca

Subject: FW:

Sylvan,

Can you look this over and offer an opinion. it will be on the next agenda.
Thank you as always for your help.

Lianne

From: Chris & Sandra Chanin [mailto:cschanin@telus.net]
Sent: September 29, 2022 4:48 PM

To: vomadmin@mhtv.ca
Subject: Fwd:

-------——- Forwarded message ---------
From: Chris & Sandra Chanin <cschanin@telus.net>
Date: Thu, Sep 29, 2022 at 4:14 PM




Proposal

Website Design and Development

Village of Masset
07/25/2022

AN
iR

CE AW

I ) 2 s
AF: F :
C & SR AL 0.
g Eas - v it L 1
- 1
849 Ve A
. . '
2 -l _
" | ]
= <) — a
1 - ' _'“ B F B
1
g . ; |
= o =3 [ Pas 3 . !
l. ! - E 1 3
% . 3%
- :

—> The Power of Commitment




Regional District of

Address

1450 KLO Road, Kelowna, BC, VIW 324

Website

www.rdco.com

ey Central Okanagan
Comivel Casegan
Northern Rockies 5319 - 50 Avenue South, Fort Nelson, BC, .
Regional Municipality  VOC 180 www.northemrockies.ca
< District of Lake 10150 Bottom Wood Lake Rd, Lake Country
YRETE" pd BC VAV 2M1 www.lakecountry.bc.ca
& Kmmar District of Kitimat 270 City Centre, Kitimat, BC VBH 2H? www kitimat.ca
P L ﬂ
VERMILION Town of Vemmilion 5021 - 49 Ave, Vermiion, AB T9X 1X1 www.vermilion.ca
S m“!ﬂg Parkland County 2;;019:1 Highway 779, Parkland County, AB parklandcounty.com
Marirville Town of Motinville 10125 100 Avenue, Morinville, AB TBR 1L6 www.mocinvilleca
x Leduc County
s Award Winning® 101-1101 5 St Nisku, AB TSE 23 www.leduc-county.ca




Proposed Methodology

GHD's key to success is ensuring we follow a defined process with our clients, while at the same time remaining
flexible. We recognize the elements for a win-win situation are an understanding of the project scope, schedule
and budget, and that communication is paramount. GHD Jeads weekly meetings with the client’s website
committee to identify any potential conflicts or constraints before they materialize into real issues that derail the
pre-defined timeline and scope. GHD will assign a dedicated Project Manager (PM) who will have the overall
responsibility for keeping the project on time and budget. To assist the PM in coordination of day-to-day tasks and
act as an alternate point of contact, 2 Project Coordinator (PC) is also assigned to the project.

GHD’ Project Process
Analysis & Information Deslgn Phase Final Quality implementation Post Maintenance &
| Consultation Architecture & Construction Assurance Phase implementatdon Support
Navigation Review
Scheme

Phase 1 - Analysis and Consultation

GHD will work with the website committee after the award date to confirm a mutually agreed upon schedule for
the project. The preliminary meeting will clarify tasks and deliverable expectations, evaluate the human and
hardware/software resources available, review public survey and approach, as well as review required integrations
and design goals. We also evaluate the current toolsets and systems used by the City for capabilities and
extensibility.

Phase 2 - Infermation Architecture and Navigation Scheme
GHD engages in a thorough review of the information architecture and navigation scheme of the current site, in
order to determine the current strengths, weaknesses and interactivity. This will be conducted by our design and
usability team, working in conjunction with our applications team.
Qur Information Architect will then work with you to re-develop a
user-first navigation. We encourage our clients to engage external
stakeholders (e.g., public, investors, tourism, council etc.) in this step.

Phase 3 — Design Phase

Our User Experience Framewaork is at the foundation of our design and
development processes as well as the development of our citizen
experience and engagement strategies. Our framework is built upon
the following stages.

(TN PATTTE B A ARC W
TEETING.
YIRFICATION

lterative research, testing and verification processes are infused into
each stage of our framework in order to continuously inform all aspects
of our User Experience Framework activities. The goa! of our User
Experience Framework is to ald in the development of websites and



apps that can be used by specific users to achieve specified goals with effectiveness, efficiency and satisfaction in a

specified context of use.

®  Specific Users {who): Target audiences. Accessible to everyone.

»  Specified Goals (what): Top common user tasks, goals and needs

& Specified Context of Use (where): Context, environment, device type, screen size, interaction methods,
capabilities

" Effectiveness (usefulness): Degree to which a product enables user to achieve goal

"  Efficiency {ease): Measured by speed, performance, and low error rate

= Satisfaction (attitude): User’s response, perceptions, and apinions on the overall website experience

Development
= Built using latest development technologies, best practices and established design patterns for optimized user
experience across all devices
®  Focus on accessibility — ensuring the website or app is fully accessible to all users by meeting stringent ADA and
WCAG accessibility standards
®  Website performance optimization — built for speed, efficiency and mobile experiences
o Search Engines Optimization - optimized structure and content based on best practices for
greater findability through search engines
o User and Quality Assurance testing to find potential issues and correct
In-Market
=  On-going design/development support
= Analytics, KPls measurement and reporting
®  Continued heuristic, technical and experience review/testing
®  Planning features and updates

Phase 4 - Content Development Phase

Occurring simultaneously to the development construction phase, the city team will develop content for the new
website based on the content preparation tools and training on SEQ/accessibility provided by GHD. Once content is
complete, GHD migrates all content inta Umbraco via our automated process.

Phase 5 - Final Construction Phase
Once the final designs and IA are approved by the committees, GHD' CSS and Umbraco development teams will
complete implementation.

Phase 6 — Quality Assurance Phase

GHD tests for product quality throughout the entire development process, finishing with a dedicated test period
following development and prior to hand-off to our clients. Among other features, we test for: speed, browser
compatibility, and working applications.

Phase 7 - Training

We will provide training and support on all the software included in our proposed solution, including the Umbraco
CMS5 and all other modules. As each project is unique, we tailor each training session to the project’s unique team
and software requirements — we understand that some staff will require maore training than others.

Phase 8 - Launch

GHD' dedicated Go Live team ensures each launch goes incredibly smoothly. Before any project is considered
“complete,” GHD will conduct a Post implementation Review. During this phase, we will confirm that the finished
products look, feel, and performs the way the City’s teams had envisioned.



Proposed Budget

One-time Development and Implementation Fees

DESCRIPTION

Project Management
Project mapagement, including:
* Leading project meetings and preparing all meeting agendas/notes
e Managing project scope, schedule, and budget
* Maintaining project documentation and recording decisions and approvals
* Managing all project communications
e Stakeholder Sessions

Installation and configuration of CMS, templates and modules.

Phase One: Analysis, Site Navigation, and Training

COST
Included

=  On-demand video training on best practices for developing website content
Phase Two: Design

Design

= Review branding and recommendations for font and colour of website.

»  QOur web designers work with you to setup your website starting from one of our
templates that were created based on experience with hundreds of municipal websi

Sitemapping Included
e Sample sitemap from a similar organization
e Tipsheet of sitemap best practices
¢ City to provide fina! sitemap
s GHD to setup sitemap in the website before training
Writing for the Web Training Included

Included

= Reports on Broken Links, Spelling, and Accessibility
= |ncludes initial scan and one {1) re-scan

Phase Four: Go Live

Go Live

s Creation and review of Golive Plan

= DNS Changes

s Redirects (up to 50 redirects)

*  Testing and verification including search and Analytics setup
= Submit to Google crawler

projects
Phase Three: Development and Implementation
Installation of CMS and modules. CSS and template implementation of approved websit§ Included
designs into responsive templates.
CMS Training {instructor-led Microsoft Teams session) Included
1 day of online live, plus & hours of questions and support from trainer
Quality Assurance Testing Included
Pre-Golive Reports Included

included

FEATURES:

Included




DESCRIPTION COST

2 News Module

*  Emergency Albert Banner

=  Form Builder: Includes access to 5 forms (Form Builder Starter package)
= (Calendar and Event Management with Registration Includes 2 calendars
®  Feedback Module (via Form Builder)

»  Search (basic)

= Social media integration

= SSL Security

= SEO Features for Site Visibility

= Mobile Optimized Website

= Contributor Settings

TOTAL BEFORE TAXES: | $18,500

Annual Hosting Fees
Annual Fees $6,300
Hosting on Microsoft Azure

Bandwidth and Storage 100GB

Backup and data protection

Formbuilder

SSL/TLS 1.2 certificate included using letsencrypt.ca

Annual unlimited user license for Umbraco CMS, Form Builder Starter,
Calendar

=  Basic support

ANNUAL TOTAL BEFORE TAXES | $6,300




Callison
Delkatalah - Wallace
Wallace - Millard
Millard - Cook
Cook - Main
Main - Orr North side
Main - Orr South side
Orr - McLeod N
Orr - McLeod S
McLeod - McDonald
McDonald - Harrison
Delkatla Causeway to Collison
Harrison
Delkatla to Wallace
Wallace - Millard North side
Wallace - Millard South side
Millard - Cook North side
Millard - Cook South side
Cook - Main North Side
Cook - Main South Side
Main - Orr
Orr - McLeod
Main St.
Hodges - Collison West
Hodges - Collison East
Collison - Harrison West
Collison - Harrison East
Orr
Tahayghen
Hodges
Causeway to corner
Behind GTN
across from old Hospital site to Trt
Trumpeter to Balsam/Cedar
Balsam/Cedar to Hemlock
Hemlock to Rec Centre parking
Causeway
Old Beach Road - Causway to Wilso
Wilson 5t - West end
Wilson St - East end
McBride - West end
McBride - East end

Condition notes length

3 pitted. Patches which need repair
4
4.5 re-capped
3 worn
2.5 recapped, but recapping is cracked. Pitted
3 Heavy pitting from salt near RCMP
3.5
3 Worn near Golden Pam BCLC
3.5 Some cracks
4.5
5 Grass shoulder encroaching

3 Worn, stops short of Delkatla
4
3.5 Worn
4 Co-op alley entrance needs fixing
3 Worn, cracks overgrown
4
4
3.5 RCMP alley entrance needs fixing

2.5 Sidewalk is in good condition, but ends shy of road

3.5 upper part more worn than lower
4 some pitting

2.5 Heaving from roots
3 worn

2.5 ends abruptly, worn
4 Recapped.

2.5 capping ended before Delkatla
3.5 Worn. Water flows over sidewalk at school
3 Worn. Narrow.
3.5 Narrow.
3.5 Worn. Narrow.
3.5 Worn, Narrow. Sod overgrown.
4.5
3.5
3 Pitted.
2.5 Deep pitting.
2.5 Deep pitting.
3.5

width



W= Gwaii Trust Society

2022 Grant Application Deadlines

Funding Initiative

Arts Grant

Arts Workshop & Mentorships
Youth Grant

Youth Centred Communities
Major Contributions

Food Sovereignty

Community Innovation

Open Call

Continuing Education
Travel Assistance Grant
Haida Gwaii Staycation Grant

Community and Holiday Events

Application Deadline

Feb 1, Oct 1 by 4pm

Feb 1, Oct 1 by 4pm

Feb 1, Oct 1 by 4pm

April 1 by 4pm

March 1, Sept 1 by 4pm

March 1 by 4pm

Feb 1, April 1, June 1, Sept 1, Oct 1, by 4pm

Applications accepted throughout the year
Applications accepted throughout the year

Applications accepted throughout the year

Applications accepted throughout the year until Dec 1 by4pm

For more information or to apply for funding, contact our office or visit www.gwaiitrust.com/grants

0Old Massett OHice:

P Box 588

Masset BC, vOT 160

162 Raven Ave, Oid Massett
Toll Free: 1 800 663 2388
Local: 250 626 3654

Skidegate Office

PO Box 1257

Skidegate BC, VOT 151
226 Front 5t, Skidegate
Toll Free: t B77 5558883
Local: 250 5598883



